CONG TY CO grmamszsas v
P H AN D AU TU \I;II\?:TC:VN, L=TPHCM, CN=CONG TY

CO PHAN BAU TU VA PHAT TRIEN

N -
VA P HAT g?§0M96£¥12E;1r.5200300.100.1.1=MST:

0301401291

T R I E N SAO Reason: | am the author of this document

Location: your signing location here

MAI VIET  fiierason 100

SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT AND SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
DEVELOPMENT

Independence — Freedom — Happiness
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No: h09/2025/CBTT- UNI
"Re: Notice of Meeting and Documents for Ho Chi Minh City, May 30, 2025
the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders"

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE ON THE ELECTRONIC INFORMATION
PORTAL OF THE STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION AND THE
STOCK EXCHANGE

To: - STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION

- HANOI STOCK EXCHANGE
- VIETNAM SECURITIES DEPOSITORY AND CLEARING
COKRPURATION

Enterprise name: SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT
STOCK COMPANY

Securities code: UNI

Address: A3.4A12 The Goldview Apartment, 346 Ben Van Don, Ward 01, District 4, Ho
Chi Minh City.

Phone: 0786781977
Website: www.saomaiviet.net

Company Representative: Ms. VU THI NHU MAIL  Position: General Director

Type of information disclosure: (X1 periodic [ extraordinary [ 24 hours [0 upon

request



Content of information disclosure: Notice of meeting and documents for the 2025 Annual

General Meeting of Shareholders.

This information has been disclosed on Sao Mai Viet's website on May 30, 2025, at the

link www.saomaiviet.net.

I commit that the contents disclosed above are true and I take full legal responsibility for

the disclosed.

Recipients: ;
- As above; . | DAUTUVAPHiZ
- Archive at office. \2 SAO M
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SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT AND SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
DEVELOPMENT Independence — Freedom — Happiness

JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No: 0282025/TB-HDQT-UNI

"Re: Organizing the 2025 Annual Ho Chi Minh City, May 30, 2025
General Meeting of Sharcholders"

NOTICE OF MEETING

2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

To: Valued Shareholders of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint

Stock Company

Pursuant to Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020, and the Charter

of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company, the Board of Directors
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Shareholders (AGM).

et
i

We cordially invite esteemed shareholders to attend the meeting =(odumn

1. Time : Starting from 08:00 on June 20, 2024 (Friday), expected to last for half a day.

7
&
2. Location : Tulip Room, 2nd Floor, Rex Hotel, 141 Nguyen Hue, District 1, Ho
Chi Minh City.
3. Meeting Content  : The General Meeting will consider and approve matters under

the authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders (according to the attached
tentative work program).

4. Conditions for attending the General Meeting: All shareholders owning shares of Sao
Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company according to the
shareholder list closed on May 26, 2025, provided by the Vietnam Securities

Depository and Clearing Corporation.



5. Meeting Documents : All documents related to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders will be posted on UNI's website at www.saomaiviet.net from May 30,

2028.

6. For any details related to the General Meeting, shareholders please contact the

headquarters of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company.

Address: 346 Ben Van Don, Ward 01, District 4, Ho Chi Minh City.

Phone: 0786781977 (Ms. Vu Thanh Thao — Administration Department).

Thank you!
Recipients:
- Shareholders;
- State Securities Commission (for 1ep011ing);
TI r C‘l | ]_\-'\I-n rren A Fe )
i ..4_.|.:__“ \E ‘.A I..I,_ L-Ur

- Vtelmm Securllles Depository ancl Clearing
Center;

- Board of Directors, General Director;
- Office archive, UNI website.

Note:

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF

—— IRECTORS

i r\[‘.«” ! ‘i?_f

1. Shareholders or authorized representatives attending the General Meeting are kindly

requested to bring the following documents:

- For direct participation: Original invitation letter for the General Meeting of
Shareholders; Original ID card/Citizen 1D card/Passport of the attendee,

- For authorized representatives:

Original power of attorney; Original [D

card/Citizen ID card/Passport of the authorized person; Copy of ID card/Citizen
ID card/Passport of the authorizing person (If the authorizing person is an
individual shareholder); Organizational power of attorney if the attendee is not

the legal representative. (Power of attorney form enclosed).
2. To ensure the smooth and successful organization of the General Meeting,
shareholders are requested to submit their registration for attending the meeting in



writing before 17:00 on Tuesday (June 17, 2025) to the address: A3.4412 The Gold
View Apartment, 346, Ben Van Don, Ward 1, District 4, HCMC, phone number:
0786781977 - Ms. Vu Thanh Thao (meeting registration form enclosed).

To ensure security at the General Meeting, shareholders are requested to use the
correct forms issued by the Company and register their attendance as stipulated in
this announcement. Any cases not complying with the company's regulations will not
be resolved at the General Meeting.




SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT AND
DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK

Time: 08:00 on June 20, 2025 (Friday), expected to last for half a day.

COMPANY

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
ndependence — Freedom — Happines

PROPOSED WORK PROGRAM

2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Location: Rex Hotel, Tulip Room, 2nd Floor, East Wing, 141 Nguyen Hue, District 1, Ho
Chi Minh City.

No. Content 3 Time Conductor
Welcoming guests and shareholders, registration for Comm{i)tieg:;lslﬁgﬁhol e
1 | attendance, verification of shareholder status, and 8h00 — 8h30 ————
RN _ Status Verification
distribution of documents : !
Committee
A | OPENING CEREMONY OF THIL GENERAL MEETING
Declaration of reasons, introduction of attending o 5
2 P Organizing Committee
eleoates e ) o
3 | Report on shareholder status verification results S.hareh.older StatL.lS
o Verification Committee
4 | Introduction of the Chairman of the General Meeting | 8h30 — 9h00 Organizing Committee
5 Chairman nominates the General Meeting Secretary Eludprs
and Vote Counting Committee )
6 Apprm.'al of the General Meeting's working Prasidiiii
regulations
7 | Approval of the General Meeting's work program Presidium
B | MAIN CONTENTS OF THE GENERAL MEETING
B1 | BUSINESS OPERATION REPORT
3 Summary report on audited financial statements for Bisesd o Dlrsstans
12024
Board of Directors' report on governance and
9 | operational integration of the Board of Directors, Board of Directors
mdmdyal Board rr}embers in 2024 | 9h00 — 9h30
Supervisory Board's report on the Company's
10 | business results, operational results of the Board of Supervisory Board
Directors, General Director in 2024.
1 Supervisory Board's self-assessment report on Supervisorv Board
operational results in 2024, P Y
B2 | PROPOSALS FOR SHAREHOLDER APPROVAL




1. Proposal on approving the audited financial

12 | statements for 2024, business results for 2024,
and profit distribution plan for 2024
2. Proposal on approving the remuneration level and
other benefits for Board of Directors members,
13 | Supervisory Board in 2024 and remuneration
paymeni plan for Board of Directors, Supervisory
Board in 2025
14 3. Proposal on approving business plan targets for
2023 and dividend payout ratio for 2025
5 4. Proposal on selecting the auditing unit for the o
" | 2025 Financial Statements 9h30 — 10h00 Presidium
5. Proposal on investment cooperation and use of
16 | assets to secure loans for Kyoritsu Maintenance
Vietnam Co., Ltd.
17 6. Proposal on the use of assets to secure capital
loans for Kyoritsu Maintenance Vietnam Co., Lid.
18 | 7. Proposal on 2024 dividend payment
19 8. Proposal on amending and supplementing the
| company charter S
20 9. Proposal on electing a new independent Board of
Directors member
10. Proposal on dismissing and rleciing o new
=) Supervisory Board member
B3 | DISCUSSION
oy Shargholc‘iers' opinions and answers to shareholders' 10100 — 10h30 prasidiig
contributions
B4 | VOTING AND ELECTION
Voting on issues reported and presented at the
23 | General Meeting, electing new Board of Chairman
Directors/Supervisory Board members.
24 | Break 10h50 — 11h15 | Organizing Committee
.- | Report on vote counting results, election results of Vote Counting
“* | Board of Directors/Supervisory Board members o Committee
C | CLOSING OF THE GENERAL MEETING o
2% Presentation of the Minutes of the 2025 Annual General Meeting
General Meeting of Shareholders Secretary
Voting to approve the Minutes of the 2025 Annual A :
<1 Genelil Megt}i)ng of Shareholders LS~ T1h30 Gl
28 | Declaration of the closing of the General Meeting Chairman

10
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FINANCIAL REPORT SUMMARY

Year 2024 (audited)

louavir)3)

I. BALANCE SHEET

\:\"t} 7 pioj/\%nbe‘r 31,2024 Unit: VND
dﬂo. Content 3_1;’12!2024 I 5ili2_12_02_3___
I | Current Assets 556.460.221.632 496.961.727.955
| Cash and cash equivalents 613.710.967 3.448.126.695
2 | Short-term receivables 84.928.980.370 81.254.292.370
3 | Inventory 461.641.532.569 402.999.562.548
4 | Other current assets 9.275.997.726 9.259.?46.3:;2
1 | Non-current Assets 0 0
TOTAL ASSETS 556.460.221.632 496.961.727.955
x| Liabilities 392.335.309.756 332.838.157.580
1 Short-term liabilities 392.335.309.756 111.453.935.308
2 Long-term liabilities 0 221.384.222.272
v Owner's Equity “1_6_4124.911.876 164,123.570.375
1 Owner's invested capital 156.176.320.000 156.176.320.000
2 Share premium 1.476.860.000 N 1,476,860,000
3 Development investment fund 94.830.030 94,830,030
4 | Undistributed profit 6.376.901.846 6.375.560.345
41 | Undistributed profit from prior periods 6.375.560.345 5,709.898.316
472 | Undistributed profit for the current period 134 1.501 1 665.662.029
TOTAL CAPITAL SOURCES 556.460.221.632 496.961.727.955
4
I1. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
No. Content 31/12/2024 31/12/2023
1 Operating revenue 1.067.037.037 1.710.000.000
2 Financial operating revenue 300.733 458.395
3 Enterp_rl_sé administration exp;;;é a 763.275.131 N 1,434620[";'0__
4 Other income ) 23.166.212 744.832.034
5 Other expenses 90.740.336 90.891.705
6 Total accounting profit before tax 23.081.960 868.190.372
7 Profit after corporate income tax 1.341.501 665.662.029
b Basic earnings per share 0 43




SAO ﬁi—’ b VARTINVESTMENT AND  THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence — Freedom - Happiness
He

\

Ho Chi Minh City, day ... month ... year 2025

MINUTES OF
VERIFICATION OF SHAREHOLDER ELIGIBILITY

TO ATTEND THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS

000

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020 and its

guiding documents;

- Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 39/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019 and
its guiding documents;

- Pursuant to the Charter of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock
Company as approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders;
Puisuant (o the Meuling Regulations of the General Mecting of Shaircholdeis as

approved at today’s Meeting.

Today, at .....ccceeeeeey, 0N the date OF oo 81 e ea
we were elected by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Sao Mai Viet
Investment and Development Joint Stock Company to serve on the Sharcholder Eligibility
Verification Committee, responsible for verifying the eligibility of shareholders attending the

2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders.

The members of the Shareholder Eligibility Verification Committee are as follows:
L. MIEIME wmmssnmasssimmmenwssmssas - Head of the Committee
2 W/ wonussvmmmmsninnes - Member
3. MI/MS: cocccivenieniennesseseseenene. - Member

The Shareholder Eligibility Verification Committee has conducted the verification of the
cligibility of shareholders/proxies attending the 2025 Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders (“Meeting”) with the following results::

- Total number of shareholders of the Company: ..................... shareholders (according to

1



the list of sharcholders prepared by the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation as of May 26, 2025)

- Total number of sharecholders and authorized representatives attending the Meeting:
.................. persons, representing ...................... shares, accounting for ...............%
of the total voting shares of the Company. Among them:

e Total number of shareholders attending in person: ............... shareholders.

e Total number of authorized representatives: ................... shareholders.

Thus, pursuant to Clause 1, Article 145 of the 2020 Law on Enterprises, and Clause 1, Article
22 of the Company’s Charter, the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Sao Mai

Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company has met the required conditions to

proceed
The minutes were made at ...... hour ...... minutes on the ...... day of . 20235,
ON BEHALF OF
THE COMMITTEE

Head of the Committee



THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence — Freedom — Happiness

Ho Chi Minh City, day ... month ... year 2025

‘DRAT MINUTES

VOTING BALLOT COUNTING MINUTES

Today, at ... o'clock on the ... day of ..., ..., at the Rex Hotel, address: 114 Nguyen Hue Street,
Ben Nghe Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, our Ballot Counting Committee consists of:

1. WIS cnnnnumesinas - Head of the Committee
2, M /MS: e, - Member
3. Mr/Ms:eieiiinnnn - Member

The Vote Counting Committee has worked promptly, honestly, and in accordance with regulations,

and hereby reports the voting results on the following matters:

Total voting ballots issued: ... ballots, representing ... shares, accounting for ...% of the
total voting shares entitled to attend the General Meeting.
Total voting ballots collected: ... ballots, representing ... shares, accounting for ...% of
the total voting shares entitled to attend the General Mecting,
Among them:
e Number of valid voting ballots: ... ballots, representing ... shares, accounting for ...% of
the total voting shares entitled to attend the General Meeting.
e Number of invalid voting ballots: ... ballots, representing ... shares, accounting for ...%
of the total voting shares entitled to attend the General Meeting.
1. Report of the Board of Directors on governance and activities of the Board in 2024

The voting results are as follows:




- Approval: .............. shares, accounting for .............. % of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting.

= DISAPPESNEL cvoasinisiei shares, accounting for ............ % of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting.

- Abstention: ................ shares, accounting for ............ % of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting.

This item was approved with a rate of ............. % of the total voting shares of the

shareholders present.

Report of the Supervisory Board on the Company’s business results, activities of the

Board of Directors, and the General Director in 2024

The voting results are as follows:
Approval: ............... shares, accounting for ..............% of the total voting shares
of sharcholders attending the Meeting.

- Disapproval: ...o.oooiiinnnn, shares, accounting ior ............% of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting.

SIS T —— shares, accounting for ............ % of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting.

This item was approved with a rate of ........... ..% of the total voting shares of the

shareholders present.

Approval of the audited 2024 Financial Statements, the 2024 business results, and the

2024 profit distribution plan

The voting results are as follows:

- Approval: ... shares, accounting for .............. % of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting.

- Disapproval: ...........cuee.. shares, accounting for ............% of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting.



- Abstention: .......coeuinn. shares, accounting for ............ % of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting.

This item was approved with a rate of ............. % of the total voting shares of the

shareholders present.

Approval of remuneration payments for the Board of Directors and Supervisory

Board in 2024 and the remuneration plan for 2025;

The voting results are as follows:

= APIOVEE o shares, accounting for .............. % of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting.

- Disapproval: .............c... shares, accounting for ............% of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting.

- AbStention: i siiates, accounting for ... % of the total voling sharcs

of shareholders attending the Meeting.

This item was approved with a rate of ............. % of the total voting shares of the

shareholders present.

Approval of the 2025 business plan targets and the 2025 dividend distribution rate

The voting results are as follows:

- Approval: ........c.unee. shares, accounting for .............. % of the total voting shares
of sharcholders attending the Meeting.

- Disapproval? ..o shares, accounting for ............% of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting.

- Abstention: ................ shares, accounting for ............ % of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting.

This item was approved with a rate of ............. % of the total voting shares of the

shareholders present.
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6. 6. Approval of the selection of the auditing firm for the 2025 financial statements

The voting results are as follows:

= APPIOVEL: ciovensniinii shares, accounting for .............. % of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting.

- Disapproval: ....ocovvivnne. shares, accounting for ............ % of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting.

- Abstention: .......coivnnen. shares. accounting for ............ % of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting.

This item was approved with a rate of ............. % of the total voting shares of the

shareholders present.

Approval of the investment cooperation with Kyoritsu Maintenance Vietnam Co., Litd

The voting results are as follows:

= Approvall suaiiseen shares, accounting for .............. % of the total voting shares
ol shareholders attending the Meeting.

5 DEanprtavalt een e shares, accounting for ............ % of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting.

- Abstention: ................ shares, accounting for ............% of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting.

This item was approved with a rate of ............. % of the total voting shares of the

shareholders present.

Approval of the use of assets as collateral for the loan from Kyoritsu Maintenance

Vietnam Co., Litd

The voting results are as follows:

s APpvall oo shares, accounting for .............. % of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting.

« Dhigapprovali....cocesisinm shares, accounting for ............% of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting.



10.

= ADSEHON: canseisvi shares, accounting for ............ % of the total voting shares

of sharcholders attending the Meeting.

This item was approved with a rate of ............. % of the total voting shares of the

shareholders present.

Approval of the 2024 dividend payment

The voting results are as follows:

= APPOVELL v shares, accounting for .............. % of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting.

B shares, accounting for ............% of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Mecting.

- Abstention: ................ shares, accounting for ............ % of the total voting shares

of sharcholders attending the Meeting,

This item was approved with a rate of ............. % of the total voting shares of the

shareholders present.

Approval of amendments and supplements to the Company’s Charter

The voting results are as follows:

- Approval: ......covnnin. shares, accounting for ..............% of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting.

= DISaRPrOvAL i shares, accounting for ............ Y% of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting.

- Abstention: ................ shares, accounting for ............ % of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting.

This item was approved with a rate of ............. % of the total voting shares of the

shareholders present.



The above are the voting results on the agenda items of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders.

This minute was completed at ... hours ... minutes on the same day and was approved prior to the

General Meeting.

MEMBER OF THE BALLOT
COUNTING COMMITTEE

HEAD OF THE BALLOT
COUNTING COMMITTEE



THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence — Freedom — Happiness

Ho Chi Minh City, day ... month ... year 2025

BALLOT COUNTING MINUTES FOR ELECTION VOTING

Today, at ... o'clock on the ... day of ..., ..., at the Rex Hotel, address: 114 Nguyen Hue Street,
Ben Nghe Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, our Ballot Counting Committee consists of’

i Mr/MS: e, - Head of the Committee
2. Mr/MS:iiiennns - Member
3. ViDL ——— - Member

The Ballot Counting Committee worked diligently, honestly, and in accordance with regulations,

and hereby reports the voting results on the following matters:

1. Approval of the election oi one new ndependent member ot the Board of Uirectors

for the 2022-2027 term

~ Election of one new member of the Board of Directors; Ms. Nguyén Thi Liéu, nominated
by the group of shareholders: Vii Duy B¢, Vii Thanh Thay, and Vi Thanh Thao (holding
10.14% of the total shares), on May 28, 2025.

Total number of ballots issued: ...... ballots, representing ..... shares, accounting for 100%
of the total voting shares entitled to attend the General Meeting.
Total number of ballots collected: ...... ballots, representing ..... shares, accounting for

...% of the total voting shares entitled to attend the General Meeting. Details as follows:



e Valid ballots: ... ballots, representing ... shares, accounting for ...% of the total

voting shares entitled to attend the General Meeting.

o Invalid ballots: ... ballots, representing ... shares, accounting for ...% of the total

voting shares entitled to attend the General Meeting.

The ballot counting results for the election of one additional member to the Company’s
Board of Directors for the remaining term 2022-2027 are as follows:

No. Candidate Name Number of Votes Percentage of
Total Votes
L Nguyén ThiLidu | vvviviiene | eevireenns %

Accordingly, the General Meeting unanimously approved the election of one

additional member to the Board of Directors for the remaining term 2022-2027,
namely Ms. Nguyén Thi Liéu.

2. Approval of the dismissal and election of one new member of the Supervisory Board
—  Distnissal of Supeivisory Duard ueiber. ivis, Hodng Thi INhung, aceoiding w e
resignation letter dated May 27, 2025;

Total number of ballots issued: ... ballots, representing ... shares, accounting for ...% of

the total voting shares entitled to attend the General Meeting.

Tatal numher nf hallpte ralleptad: hallate renreeeptino chares aceanntino fne 04

of the total voting shares entitled to attend the General Meeting. Of which:

e Valid ballots: .......... ballots, representing ........... shares, accounting for ........ % of
the total voting shares entitied 1o attend the General Meeting.

e Invalid ballots: ........ ballots, representing ....... shares, accounting for ....... % of the

total voting shares entitled to attend the General Meeting.

The vote counting results for the dismissal of one member of the Supervisory Board are

as follows:



No. Full Name Approve Disapprove Abstain
1 Hoang Thi Nhung —|......... votes, | ... votes, | ......... votes,

Member  of  the | accounting accounting accounting
Supervisory Board 17 SR % for i fOF coiviuaiPo

Thus, the General Meeting unanimously approved the dismissal of Supervisory

Board member Ms. Hoang Thi Nhung with a rate of .......... Yo

— Election of one new member of the Supervisory Board: Ms. ................... as nominated

loy shiareholers - oo (HBLAINE .vcovieinn % of shares)on ...............

The vote counting committee announces the election results for the replacement of one
member of the Supervisory Board for the 2022-2027 term

- Total number of ballots issued: ... ballots, representing ... shares, accounting for ...% of 75

the total voting shares of shareholders attending the Meeting.

- Total number of ballots collected: ... ballots, representing ... shares, accounting for ...% " A
of the total vnting shares of shareholders attending the Meeting. Among them:

¢ Valid ballots: ....... ballots, representing .......... shares, accounting for ......... %__/

of the total voting shares of shareholders attending the Meeting.

e Invalid ballots: ........ ballots, representing ........ shares, accounting for ........ %

of the total votine shares of shareholders attending the Meeting.

- The vote counting results for the supplementary election of one member of the

Supervisory Doard of the Company for the remaining term 2022-2027 arc as follows:

Y

NO. Candidate Name Number of Votes Percentage of
Total Votes
1.
............................................................. Y%

Thus, the General Meeting of Shareholders approved the supplementary election of one

member to the Supervisory Board for the remaining term 2022-2027, namely Mr./Mrs.



The minute was completed at ........... on the same day and were approved before the General
Meeting.

HEAD OF THE BALLOT MEMBER OF THE BALLOT
COUNTING COMMITTEE COUNTING COMMITTEE
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DRAFT
MINUTE OF
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025
OF SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK
COMPANY
olo
Company SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK
Name: COMPANY
Business 0301401291, issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi

Registration Minh City, amended for the 31st time on April 17, 2025
Number:

8] ni_t_-_'ann_*i'.r_'n_*_i: /\__'1/" I.'"\ 17 T‘ha nn]ﬂ\!;r—'ﬂ_v A nartment 214 n(-‘n Van T\n?‘\ er'pp‘f ‘}f’n'r‘ ni r\?(‘h'ir\‘f

Address: 4, Ho Chi Minh City

Organizing the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Sao Mai Viet Investment and
Development Joint Stock Company

Time: 8:00 AM, June , 2025
Location: Rex Hotel, 141 Nguyen Hue Street, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City

A.  PROCEDURAI MATTERS

1. Statement of Purpose
The moderator announced the reason: Pursuant to the Company’s Charter and the prevailing
laws, the Board of Directors (“BOD”) convenes the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders to approve matters within the authority of the General Meeting of Sharcholders
(“AGM").

2. Report on Verification of Shareholder Eligibility
WREIMNIEL ovmmsauins — Head of the Shareholder Eligibility Verification Committee, reported
the results of the verification of shareholders’ eligibility to attend the Meeting as of 9:00 AM.
- The total number of sharcholders attending in person and through valid proxies

T SV persons, representing ............... shares, accounting for ......... % of the total

voting shares (Based on the list of shareholders entitled to attend the 2025 Annual General

|




Meeting of Shareholders as of May 28, 2025, prepared by the Vietnam Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation).

According to the Company’s Charter, the General Meeting of Shareholders may proceed
when the shareholders attending in person or by proxy represent more than 50% of the

total voting shares of the Company.

Therefore, the Meeting meets the required conditions to proceed.

3. Introduction of the Presidium

Ms. Phan Hong My Phuong — Chairwoman of the Board of Directors — Chair of the
Meeting

Ms. Vu Thi Nhu Mai — Member of the Board of Directors cum General Director — Legal
Representative

Ms. Nguyen Thi Le Thanh — Member of the Board of Directors

4. The Chair of the Meeting appointed the Secretaries of the Meeting, and the appointment

was approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders with a 100% approval rate. The

appointed individuals are as follows:

Ms. Nguyen Thi Ngoc Thao

5. The Chair of the Meeting nominated the Vote Counting Committee, and the nomination

was approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders with a 100% approval rate. The

committee members are as follows:

Mr/MS. oo, — Head of the Committee
|\t 71— — Member
Mr./MS. oveeviannn, — Member

. The Chair of the Meeting presented the proposal for the approval of the Regulations on

the organization of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and the agenda of the

Meeting

The General Meeting of Sharcholders approved the meeting agenda and the Regulations
on the organization of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Sao Mai Viet
Investment and Development Joint Stock Company, with an approval rate of 100%.

Upon completion of the opening procedures, the Meeting officially commenced according

to the agenda and contents previously approved by the General Meeting.

MEETING CONTENT

Ms. Vu Thi Nhu Mai, member of the Board of Directors, presented the matters to be
submitted for approval by the General Meeting. The specific items submitted for approval

are as follows:



1. Report of the Board of Directors (BOD) on governance and activities of the BOD in 2024;
2. Report of the Supervisory Board (SB) on the Company’s business results, activities of the

BOD, and the General Director in 2024;

(8]

Approval of the audited 2024 Financial Statements, 2024 business results, and 2024 profit

distribution plan (attached Proposal No. 01/2025/T Tr-HDQT-UNI);

4. Approval of remuneration for the BOD and SB in 2024 and the remuneration plan for 2025
(attached Proposal No. 02/2025/TTr-HPQT-UNI);

5. Approval of 2025 business plan targets and 2025 dividend distribution rate (attached
Proposal No. 03/2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI);

6. Approval of the selection of the auditing firm for the 2025 financial statements (attached
Proposal No. 04/2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI);

7. Approval of investment cooperation with Kyoritsu Maintenance Vietnam Co., Ltd.
(attached Proposal No. 05/2025/TTr-HPQT-UNI);

8. Approval of the use of assets as collateral for loan obligations of Kyoritsu Maintenance
Vietnam Co., Ltd. (attached Proposal No. 06/2025/TTr-HPQT-UNI);

9. Approval of 2024 dividend payiment (attached Proposal No. 07/2025/TTi-IIDQT-UNI);

10. Approval of the amendments and supplements to the Company’s Charter (attached
Proposal No. 08/2025/1Tr-HDQT-UNI);

11. Approval of the election of one new independent BOD member for the 2022-2027 term

(attached Proposal No. 09/2025/TTr-HPQT-UNI);

12. Approval of the dismissal and election of one new Supervisory Board member for the
2022-2027 term (attached Proposal No. 10/2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI).

C. DISCUSSION AND DELIBERATION
I'he General Meeting listened o the opinions of sharcholders and conducted discussions on
the matters presented and reported in Section B of these Minutes.
Shareholders attending the Meeting raised the following questions and comments:
~ Shareholderasked: ... umeumvamnmisi,
— Shareholder asked: ............ocooiii
The Meeting unanimously agreed with the responses provided by the Presidium, and there

were no further comments or objections.

D. VOTING AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF VOTING RESULTS
The Head of the Vote Counting Committee updated the verification results of shareholder

eligibility and provided instructions on the voting procedures:

L2
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Updated the verification results of shareholder eligibility before conducting the election
and voting at 10:00 AM: The number of shareholders and valid proxies attending the
Meeting remained unchanged compared to the opening time of the Meeting.

Provided instructions on the election and voting procedures.

The Meeting proceeded with the voting.

The Vote Counting Committee conducted the vote counting and announced the voting results

on the matters submitted for approval in Section B:

Total voting ballots distributed: ......... ballots, representing ............ shares, accounting
for 100% of the total voting shares attending the Meeting.
Total voting ballots collected: ....... ballots, representing ............ shares, accounting

for 100% of the total voting shares attending the Meeting. Among them:

e Number of valid voting ballots: ........ ballots, representing .......... shares,
accounting for 100% of the total voting shares attending the Meeting.
o Number of invalid voting ballots: ..... ballots, representing ..... shares, accounting

for 0% of the total voting shares attending the Meeting.

(The detailed results are prescnted in the Sununary Tables of the Meeting outcomes.)

1.

Report of the Board of Directors on governance and activities of the Board in 2024;

The voting results are as follows:

Approval: ......ceeneen. shares, accounting for .............. % of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting.

Disapproval: ................. shares, accounting for ............ % of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting..
Ahstention: ... ... shares accounting for .. ... .. % of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting.

This item was approved witharateof ............. % of the total voting shares of the

shareholders present.

Report of the Supervisory Board on the Company’s business results, activities of the

Board of Directors, and the General Director in 2024;

The voting results are as follows:

APPrOval: oo s shares, accounting for .............. % of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting.



Disapproval: ................. shares, accounting for ............% of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting..

Abstention: wieisaiases e shares, accounting for ............ % of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting.

This item was approved with a rate of ............. % of the total voting shares of the

shareholders present.

Approval of the audited 2024 Financial Statements, the 2024 business results, and the
2024 profit distribution plan (attached Proposal No. 01/2025/TTr-HPQT-UNI);

The voting results are as follows:

Approval: .......oeveen. shares, accounting for .............. % of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting.

Disapproval? ..o shares, accounting for............ % of the total voting shares
of sharcholders attending the Meeting..
Abstention: .. .o SIATCE, 2eBOUNHBE IO o % of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting.

This item was approved with a rate of ............. % of the total voting shares of the

shareholders present.

Approval of remuneration payments for the Board of Directors and Supervisory

Board in 2024 and the remuneration plan for 2025 (attached Proposal No.
02/2025/TTr-HPQT-UNI);

The voting results are as follows:

Approval: ............... shares, accounting for .............. % of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting.
Disapproval: ................. shares, accounting for ............ % of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting..
Abstenfion: oo shares, accounting for ............% of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting.

This item was approved with a rate of ............. % of the total voting shares of the

shareholders present.
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5.

g

Approval of the 2025 business plan targets and the 2025 dividend distribution rate

(attached Proposal No. 03/2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI);

The voting results are as follows:

- AP s s shares, accounting for .............. % of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting.

= Disapproval: ....ccunsvianices shares, accounting for............ % of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting..

- Abstention: ................ shares, accounting for ............ % of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting.

This item was approved with a rate of ............. % of the total voting shares of the

shareholders present.

Approval of the selection of the auditing firm for the 2025 financial statements

(attached Proposal No. 04/2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI);

The voting results are as follows:

- Approval: ............... shares, accounting for .............. % of the total voting shares
ol sharcholders attending the Meeting.

- Disappovall v shares, accounting for ............ % of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting..

L b R —— shares, accounting for ............ % of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting.

This item was approved with a rate of ............. % of the total voting shares of the

shareholders present.

Approval of the investment cooperation with Kyoritsu Maintenance Vietnam Co.,

Ltd. (attached Proposal No. 05/2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI);

The voting results are as follows:

= PPN wenennanes shares, accounting for .............. % of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting.

- Disapproval: ..o shares, accounting for ............ % of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting..

S0 g R shares, accounting for ............ % of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting.



10.

This item was approved with a rate of ............. % of the total voting shares of the

shareholders present.

Approval of the use of assets as collateral for the loan from Kyoritsu Maintenance

Vietnam Co., Ltd. (attached Proposal No. 06/2025/TTr-HPQT-UNI);
The voting results are as follows:

- Approvall e shares, accounting for .............. % of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting.

TR | shares, accounting for............% of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting..

o shares, accounting for ............% of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting.

This item was approved with a rate of ............. % of the total voting shares of the
pp &

shareholders present.

Anproval of the 2024 dividend pavment (attached Pronosal No. 07/2025/TTr-HPOT-

UNI);

The voting results are as follows:

5 BRVELL e covmamcnion shares, accounting for .............. % of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting.

- Disapproval: ......c.cveens shares, accounting for............% of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting..
Abstention: ................ shares, accounting for ............ % of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting,

This item was approved with a rate of ............. % of the total voting shares of the

shareholders present.

Approval of amendments and supplements to the Company’s Charter (attached
Proposal No. 08/2025/TTr-HPQT-UNI);

The voting results are as follows:

- APpIoVal: i shares, accounting for ..............% of the total voting shares

of shareholders attending the Meeting.

« oy oy e
o /"\)ff

=

o

W=\



11.

- Disapproval: .........covvenne shares, accounting for............ % of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting..

- Abstention: ................ shares, accounting for ............% of the total voting shares
of shareholders attending the Meeting.
This item was approved with a rate of ............. % of the total voting shares of the

shareholders present.

Approval of the election of a new independent member of the Board of Directors for

the 2022-2027 term (attached Proposal No. 09/2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI);

Elected one new Board member: Ms. NGUYEN THI LIEU, nominated by the shareholder

group: Vi Duy Bé, Vi Thanh Thuy, Vi Thanh Théo (sharcholding ratio: 10.14%) as of

May 28, 2025.

Total number of ballots issued: ......... ballots, representing ......... shares, accounting for

100% of the total voting shares of shareholders attending the Meeting.

Total number of ballots collected: ......... ballots, representing ......... shares, accounting
for........ % of the total voting shares of shareholders attending the Meeting. Among them:
o Valid bhallots: ... ... hallots. representine ... . .. shares. accounting

T csvarsmancen % of the total voting shares of shareholders attending the Meeting.
o Invalid ballots: ......... ballots, representing ......... shares, accounting

PO carisings % of the total voting shares of sharcholders attending the Meeting.

The voting results for the supplementary election of one member of the Company's Board

of Directors for the remaining term 2022-2027 are as follows:

I NoO. Candidate Name Number of Votes | Percentage of
Total Votes
1. NoggCn Thi L8 = [ wemmemmomimnse | sesnnoswns Yo

Thus, the General Meeting unanimously approved the supplementary election of one
member of the Board of Directors for the remaining term 2022-2027, namely Ms.
Nguyén Thi Liéu,

12. Approval of the dismissal and election of a new member of the Supervisory Board for

the 2022-2027 term (attached Proposal No. 10/2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI);



— Dismissal of Supervisory Board member: Ms. Hoang Thi Nhung, according to her
resignation letter dated May 27, 2025;
Total number of ballots issued: ... ballots, representing ... shares, accounting for ...% of
the total voting shares of shareholders attending the Meeting.
Total number of ballots collected: ... ballots, representing ... shares, accounting for ...%
of the total voting shares of shareholders attending the Meeting. Among them:
e Valid ballots: ....... ballots, representing .......... shares, accounting for ......... % of the
total voting shares of shareholders attending the Meeting.
e Invalid ballots: ........ ballots, representing ........ shares, accounting for ........ % of the

total voting shares of sharcholders attending the Meeting.

- The voting results for the dismissal of one member of the Supervisory Board are as

follows:
No. Full Name Approve Disapprove Abstain
1. | Hoang Thi Nhung— | ......... VOIEE: | s VOLes; | wesesee votes,
Member of the accounting accounting accounting
Supervisory Board ) {2 S % (i) grap % 5 (ORE %

— Election of 01 new member of the Supervisory Board: Ms. ................... nominated by

shareholders .. ... ..., _(shareholdine ratio: ... %)Y on

The Ballot Counting Committee announces the results of the election to replace 01 member of

the Supervisory Board for the 2022-2027 term

- Total number of ballots issued: ...... ballots, representing ..... shares, accounting for
100% of the total voting shares entitled to attend the General Meeting.

- Total number of ballots collected: ...... ballots, representing ..... shares, accounting

for ...% of the total voting shares entitled to attend the General Meeting. Among them:

e Valid ballots: ....... ballots, representing .......... shares, accounting for ......... % of
the total voting shares of shareholders attending the Meeting.

e Invalid ballots: ........ ballots, representing ........ shares, accounting for ........% of

the total voting shares of shareholders attending the Meeting.

- The vote counting results for the supplementary election of one member of the
Supervisory Board of the Company for the remaining term 2022-2027 are as follows
9



NO. Candidate Name

Number of Yotes

Percentage of

Total Votes

.............................

oooooooooooooooooooooo

Thus, the General Meeting of Shareholders approved the supplementary election of one

member to the Supervisory Board for the remaining term 2022-2027, namely Mrs.

E. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES AND CLOSING OF THE GENERAL MEETING

The minutes and the attached proposals were approved by the General Meeting with a 100%

approval rate.

The Chairperson declared the closing of the General Meeting. The meeting ended at 10:30

AM on the same day./.

SECRETARY
(Signature)

10

CHAIRPERSON
(Signature)



SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT AND THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK

COMPANY Independence — Freedom — Happiness

Ho Chi Minh City, day ... month ... year 2023

RESOLUTION
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025

SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

1+l

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.6

Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 approved by the National Assembly
onJune 17, 2020;

Pursuant to Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP detailing the implementation of certain
articles of the Securities Law dated December 30, 2020;

The Charter of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company
(“Charter”);

Meeting minutes No. ... /2025/BBH/DHDCH-UNI dated .../.../2025 of the Annual
General Meeting of Shcn ehola'er s of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint

Pl it al :
l.)nl..-‘ x_Ui_lun.i)| LUM'JI ; /,

RESOLUTION

Article 1: Approve the contents of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
as follows:

Report of the Board of Directors (BOD) on governance and the operational results
of the BOD in 2024;

Report of the Supervisory Board (SB) on the Company’s business results, activities
of the BOD, and the General Director in 2024;

Approval of the audited financial statements for 2024, the business results of 2024,
and the profit distribution plan for 2024 (attached to Proposal No. 01/2025/TTr-
HDQT-UNI);

Approval of the remuneration payments to the BOD and SB in 2024 and the
remuneration plan for 2025 (attached to Proposal No. 02/2025/TTr-HPQT-UNI);
Approval of the business plan targets for 2025 and the dividend payout ratio for
2025 (attached to Proposal No. 03/2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI);

Approval of the selection of the auditing firm for the 2025 financial statements

(attached to Proposal No. 04/2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI);



13 Approval of investment cooperation with Kyoritsu Maintenance Vietnam Co., Ltd.

(attached to Proposal No. 05/2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI);

1.8 Approval of the use of assets to secure loans for Kyoritsu Maintenance Vietnam Co.,
Ltd. (attached to Proposal No. 06/2025/TTr-HPQT-UNI);

1.9 Approval of the dividend payment for 2024 (attached to Proposal No. 07/2025/TTr-
HDQT-UNI);

1.10 Approval of amendments and supplements to the Company’s Charter (attached to

Proposal No. 08/2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI);
iy Approval of the election of one new independent member of the BOD for the
remaining term 2022-2027 (attached to Proposal No. 09/2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI);
1.12 Approval of the dismissal and election of one new member of the Supervisory Board

for the term 2022-2027 (attached to Proposal No. 10/2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI);

Article 2: Implementation:

Members of the Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board, the General Director, the
Executive Board, and related ndividuals and departments shall, based on their
functions, duties, and authorities, be responsible for organizing and implementing the

contents approved and adopted in this Resolution.

Article 3: Effective Date:
This resolution takes effect from the date of signing

ON BEHALF OF THE GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS

- Information  disclosure PRESIDING BOARD
department, Company website, (Sionature, fill name, and seal)
- As stated in Article 2; h “ '
- Archive: Board of Directors
Office.

Recipients:

PHAN HONG MY PHUONG



SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT Independence — Freedom — Happiness
STOEK-COMPANY

Ho Chi Minh City, day ... month ... year 2025

RESOLUTION

( Re: Election of a New Independent Member of the Board of Directors for the Remaining Term
2022-2027)

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025

SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

—  Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QHI14 dated June 17, 2020, of the National

decorahhe nf tthn Cantealint o ki o TEntiy copme mpinel 300 rprsi iz ooy ogipigompatens
rdueldiite ) Gy LAl S ULIIGOT dhe dbnis oy vaedliadly Jled 10 GG e P R

— Pursuant to the Securities Law No. 34/2019/QHI14 dated November 26, 2019, of the
National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam and its guiding documents;

— Pursuant to the Charter of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock
Company;

—  Pursuant to the Proposal No. ......./2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI dated ...../...../2025 of the Board
of Directors regarding the supplementary election of an independent member of the Board
uj Directors jor the remaining (eiiii 2022-2027;

— Pursuant to the Minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders No.
..... /2025/BBH/DHPCD-UNI dated ..../..../20235.

RESOLUTION

Article 1: Approval of the election of one (01) new independent member of the Board of

Directors for the remaining term 2022 — 2027 for the following individual :



—  Mrs. Nguyén Thi Lidu (Citizen Identification Number: 030177006735, issued on January
11, 2022, by the Department of Police for Administrative Management of Social Order)

was approved with a voting rate of ...... %o

Article 2: Implementation Provisions

-~ Members of the Board of Directors shall perform their duties and exercise their powers in
accordance with the Company's Charter, the Board of Directors” Rules of Operation, the
Company’s Internal Governance Regulations, and other internal regulations of the

Company from the effective date of this Resolution;

— This Resolution shall take effect from the date of signing. Members of the Board of
Directors, the General Director, and related individuals and departments shall be
responsible for organizing and implementing this Resolution based on their functions,

duties, and authorities.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE GENERAL
- As gb[)pe; MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
- Filed at the Office PRESIDING BOARD

PHAN HONG MY PHUONG



SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT
AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT
STOCK COMPANY Independence — I'reedom — Happiness

THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

PCP-UNI Ho Chi Minh City, day ... month ... year 2025

SA
ot
RESOLUTION

(Re: Dismissal and Supplementary Election of Supervisory Board Member for the Remaining
Term 2022-2027)

o0o

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025

SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Pursuant to the Enterprise Ly No. 3972020/CH14 dated Jine 17, 2020, of the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam and its guiding documents;

—  Pursuant to the Securities Lavw No. 54/2019/QHI14 dated November 26, 2019, of the
National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam and its guiding documents;

-~ Pursuant to the Charter of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock
Company;

—  Pursuant to the Proposal No. ...../TTr-HPQT-UNI dated ..../..../2025 of the Board of
Directors regarding the disinissal and election of a new member of the Supervisory Board
for the remaining term 2022--2027,

—  Pursuant to the Minutes of the Shareholders ' Meeting No. ... ....../2025/BBH/DHDCH-UNI
dated ..../..../2025.

RESOLUTION

Article 1: Approve the dismissal of the Supervisory Board member for the 2022-2027 term
as follows:

—  Mrs. Hoang Thi Nhung, according to her resignation letter dated May 27, 2025.



Article 2: Approve the election of 01 additional member to the Supervisory Board for the

remaining 2022-2027 term as follows:

MES. e, (Citizen 1D: oo, issuedon ..../..../ .....al.oeeeene. ) with

an approval rate of .....%

Article 3: Implementation Clause

—  Members of the Supervisory Board shall perform their duties and exercise their rights in
accordance with the Company’s Charter, the Supervisory Board’s Operating Regulations,
the Company’s internal governance regulations, and other internal company provisions
from the effective date of this Resolution.;

— This Resolution is effective from the date of signing. Members of the Board of Directors,
the General Director, and related individuals and departments shall, based on their
functions, duties, and powers, be responsible for organizing and implementing this

Resolution.

Keeipients: UIN BHALE Ui 1Rl GuNIsRAL
- As above; MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
- Filed at the Office PRESIDING BOARD

PHAN HONG MY PHUONG



SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT AND SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
7 MENT JOINT STOCK Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Ho Chi Minh City, day ... month ... year 2025

‘N ON THE ORGANIZATION OF THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law 2020 and its guiding documents;
- Pursuant to the Securities Law 2019 and its guiding documents;

- Pursuant to the Charter of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock
Company (“Charter”).

CHAPTER1
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Article 1: Scope and Applicable Subjects

1.1 This Regulation applies to the organization of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders (*Meeting” or “GMS”) of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint
Stock Company (“Company”).

1.2 This Regulation specifically defines the rights and obligations of shareholders, attendees

of the Meeting, and the conditions and procedures for holding the Meeting.

CHAPTER 11
RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF ATTENDEES AT THE MEETING

Article 2: Rights and Obligations of Shareholders, Persons Authorized by Shareholders to
attend the Meeting

2.1 Conditions for attending the Meeting:

Attendees of the Meeting must be Sharcholders or persons duly authorized in writing by

shareholders owning voting shares according to the shareholder list prepared by the Vietnam

Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation (VSDC) on May 26, 2025, for the purpose of
attending the Meeting. ("' Attendees')




2.2 Rights of Attendees:

23

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

To directly attend or authorize another person to attend the Meeting;

To have the right to discuss and vote on all matters under the authority of the General
Meeting of Shareholders as stipulated in the Charter of Sao Mai Viet Investment and
Development Joint Stock Company, the Enterprise Law 2020, and relevant legal
normative documents;

To be publicly informed by the Meeting Organizing Committee about the Meeting
agenda;

Sharcholders or authorized representatives arriving late at the Meeting have the right
to register, then have the right to participate and vote immediately at the Meeting, but
the Presiding Board is not obliged to stop the Meeting, and the validity of previously
voted resolutions remains unchanged.

Other rights as stipulated by the Enterprise Law and the Company's Charter.

Obligations of Attendees:

(i)

(i1)
(iif)
(iv)

Attendees must bring and present all of the following documents to the Shareholder
Eligibility Verification Committee:
a) Tor individual Sharcholders:

- Valid Identity Card/Passport/Citizen 1D card;

SN, O '
thy bbbt deiel g dalda

- Valid power of attorney in accordance with the Company's form (for authorized
representatives.

b) For organizational Shareholders:
- Certified copy of Enterprise Registration Certificate/Establishment Decision
(duly certified copy);
- Valid Identity Card/Passport/Citizen 1D card of the legal representative;
- Invitation letter.
(*) Tn ease the legal representative of the Shareholder anthorizes another person to
attend, the authorized person must bring:
- Certified copy of the Shareholder's  Enterprise  Registration
Certificate/Establishment Decision (duly certified copy);
- Valid Identity Card/Passport/Citizen ID card of the authorized person;
- Invitation letter; and
- alid power of attorney in accordance with the Company's form.
Wear the Attendee badge throughout the Meeting;

Maintain security and order and not cause disturbance or disorder at the Meeting;

Recording or filming the Meeting must be publicly announced and approved by the
Presiding Board before being carried out;

2



(v) Speak and vote in accordance with the instructions of the Meeting Organizing
Commiitee and strictly adhere to the direction of the Presiding Board:

(vi) Strictly comply with this Regulation, respect the results of the Meeting's work;

(vii) Provide information about related parties or parties with interests related to the
Sharcholder as required by the Company. Comply with the provisions of this
Regulation.

Article 3: Rights and Obligations of the Shareholder Eligibility Verification Committee

3.1

The Shareholder Eligibility Verification Committee is established by the Board of

Directors and performs the following functions and duties:

(i) Verify the eligibility of Attendees: Request Attendees to present documents as
stipulated in Article 2.3 (i) of this Regulation;

(i) Issue Attendee badges, voting cards, ballot papers, and other relevant meeting
documents to Attendees;

(iii) Report and be responsible before the Meeting for the results of verifying the
eligibiiity of Altendees:

a) Before the opening of the Meeting;

D) DBEIOIC Cacht YOLE 01 Lhe VICELNE 11 WIEIe 1S @ CHange 1 Uie nUImoer ol Alendees
registered to attend the Meeting (Attendees arriving late and registering to
attend);

In case an attendee is not fully eligible to attend the Meeting, the Shareholder Eligibility
Verification Committee has the right to refuse that person's right to attend the meeting,

refuse to issue voting cards, ballot papers, and refuse to distribute Meeting documents.

Article 4: Rights and Obligations of the Vote Counting Committee

4.1

The Vote Counting Committee consists of individuals whose names are not on the list of
candidates/nominees for the Board of Directors/Supervisory Board, nominated by the
Meeting Presiding Board and approved by the GMS, which also determines their specific
number and list to carry out vote counting at the Meeting,

The Vote Counting Committee has the duty to:

(i)  Guide the distribution of ballot papers, casting of votes, and counting of ballots;

(i) Review, evaluate, and conclude on invalid votes and summarize any complaints
regarding elections (if any);

(iii) Prepare a vote counting record, announce the election results, and the list of elected
individuals;

. 3
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(iv) Seal the ballot papers and hand over the Vote Counting Record and all ballot papers
to the Presiding Board;

(v) In addition to duties related to the election of Board of Directors/Supervisory
Board members, the Vote Counting Committee shall report the results of voting
on other matters requiring shareholder opinion at the Meeting;

(vi) Perform other assigned duties.

The Vote Counting Committee is responsible for the accuracy and truthfulness of the
announced vote counting results.

Article 5: Rights and Obligations of the Presiding Board and Meeting Secretary

|
52
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5.5

5.0

5.8

The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall be the Presiding Board of the Meeting.

In case the Chairman of the Board of Directors is absent, has resigned from the position of

Chairman of the Board of Directors, or is temporarily incapacitated, the remaining Board

of Directors members shall elect one of them to be the Presiding Board of the Meeting.

In case all Board of Directors members have submitted resignation letters to the Company

before the opening of the Meeting or a Presiding Board cannot be elected, the Meeting shall

proceed to elect a presiding member from among the shareholders, with each ordinary share

having one vote, and the person with the highest number of votes shall be the Presiding

Board of the Meeting.

The Presiding Board shall appoint one or more secretaries for the GMS meeting. The

Meeting Secretary is responsible for preparing the Meeting Minutes and performing

assisting tasks as assigned by the Presiding Board.

Decisions of the Presiding Board on matters of order, procedure, or events arising outside

the agenda of the Mecting shall be final.

The Presiding Board may carry out any actions deemed necessary to conduct the Meeting

in a proper and orderly manner, or to reflect the wishes of the majority of Attendees.

Without needing the opinion of the Meeting, the Presiding Board may at any time decide

to adjourn the Meeting to another time and place (in accordance with the Enterprise Law

and the Company's Charter) if it determines that:

(i) The meeting venue does not have enough convenient seating for all Attendees;

(i) Communication facilities at the meeting venue do not ensure Attendees' accurate and
safe participation, discussion, and voting;

(iii) Any Attendee or other individual attending the Meeting is obstructing, causing
disorder, or risking preventing the meeting from proceeding fairly and legally.

The Presiding Board has the right not to respond or only to acknowledge contributions from



5.9

Attendees if the content of the contributions or proposals falls outside the Meeting Agenda.
The Presiding Board has the right to require all Attendees to undergo inspection or security
measures that the Presiding Board deems appropriate. In case an Attendee refuses to
comply with the aforementioned inspection or security measures, the Presiding Board, after

careful consideration, may refuse or expel the said Attendee from participating in the
Meeting.

5.10 The Meeting Secretary performs assisting tasks as assigned by the Presiding Board.

CHAPTER III
MEETING PROCEDURES

Article 6: Conditions for Holding the Meeting

6.1

The Meeting shall be held when the number of Attendees representing over 50% of the
total voting shares according to the shareholder list established at the time of closing the
shareholder list for the right to attend the Meeting is present.

In case the Meeting does not meet the conditions for holding as stipulated above, the

subsequent convening and holding of the Meeting shall be conducted in accordance with
the Company's Charter and the Enterprise Law.

Article 7: Conduct of the Meeting

7.1

12
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7.4

The Meeting is expected to last half a day and may be recorded and stored in a suitable
electronic format.

The Meeting will proceed strictly according to the content order and agenda approved by
the Meeting during the opening session.

The Meeting will sequentially discnss and approve the contents on the Meeting agenda by
voting as stipulated in Article 10 of this Regulation.

The Meeting concludes after the Meeting Minutes are approved.

Article 8: Approval of GMS Resolutions

8.1

8.2

Resolutions of the Meeting shall be approved when supported by the number of Attendees
representing over 50% of the total votes of all Attendees, except as stipulated in Clause 2
of this Article.

The voting for the election of Board of Directors/Supervisory Board members must be

carried out by cumulative voting, whereby each Attendee has a total number of votes



corresponding to the total shares owned/represented multiplied by the number of members
to be elected to the Board of Directors/Supervisory Board. Attendees have the right to
cumulate all or part of their total votes for one or more candidates. Elected Board of
Directors/Supervisory Board members shall be determined by the highest number of votes
until the number of members specified in the Company's Charter and in accordance with
legal provisions is reached. In case two or more candidates receive the same highest number
of votes for the last remaining Board of Directors/Supervisory Board position, a re-election
shall be held among those candidates with equal votes or selection shall be made according
to the criteria of the election regulation for Board of Directors/Supervisory Board members

or the Company's Charter.

Article 9: Voting Procedures for Approving Resolutions at the Meeting

The voting on matters at the Meeting, depending on the case and at the discretion of the Presiding
Board, shall be carried out in the following forms:

9.1 Voting by ballot:
(i)  oting contenis recorded on the Voting Card shall be voted on by Attendees by selecting

"approve" or "disapprove" or "no opinion" for each content requiring an opinion.

(i) Alendees shiail cast tieit yoles decotding w tie ivliowing piinciples:

a) Voting begins upon the signal of the Presiding Board or the Head of the Vote
Counting Committee and ends when the last Attendee casts their vote into the
ballot box or after 30 minutes from the start of voting, whichever comes first. After
voting concludes, the ballot box will be sealed;

b) Vote counting begins immediately after voting ends and the ballot box is sealed.

(iii) Invalid voting cards shall not be counted, including:

a) Cards not conforming to the sample issued by the Organizing Committee and
without the Company's seal;

b) Cards that are torn, crossed out, erased, or altered,;

¢) Cards without the Attendee's signature;

d) Ballots containing additional information or symbols that make it impossible for
the Vote Counting Committee to determine the voter's opinion:

e) Cards with multiple different opinions on the same voting content, in which case

that specific voting section is invalid.

The voting for each content to be approved on the Voting Card is independent, and the
validity of one content's vote does not affect the validity of other voting contents;

(iv) In case an Attendec makes a mistake while filling out the Voting Card, provided it has



not yet been cast into the ballot box and the voting period has not expired, they have
the right to directly approach the Head of the Vote Counting Committee to request a

new Voting Card to ensure the Shareholder's rights.

9.2 Direct voting:
Altendees vote on matters requiring an opinion by raising their Voting Card high or by
other means as directed by the Presiding Board. The determination of voting results shall
be carried out by the Vote Counting Committee counting and recording the number of
"approve," "disapprove,” and "no opinion" votes to announce the results before the
Meeting.

9.3 For each matter to be voted on, the Presiding Board will ask for shareholders' opinions in the
order: Approve; Disapprove; No opinion. If a shareholder does not raise their voting card to
choose any option, they shall be considered as approving. For each matter submitted for

voting, sharcholders are only allowed to raise their voting card once.

9.4 The election of Board of Directors members shall be conducted according to the

Regulation on the election of Board of Directors members approved at the Meeting.

9.5 The election of Supervisory Board members shall he conducted according to the

Regulation on the election of Supervisory Board members approved at the Meeting.

Article 10: Regulations on Vote Counting for Ballot Voting

10.1 The Vote Counting Committee shall carry out vote counting as follows:
(i) The Vote Counting Committee shall work in an area separate from the Meeting area.
(i) Verify the validity of the Voting Cards.
(iii) Examine each Voting Card sequentially and record the vote counting results.
(iv) Calculate and remove the number of shares not entitled to vote by related
shareholders (if any for each content to be voted on).

(v) Seal all Voting Cards and hand them over to the Head of the Vote Counting
Committee.

10.2 Preparation and announcement of the Vote Counting Record:

(iy  After vote counting is completed, the Vote Counting Committee shall prepare a Vote

Counting Results Record.

(i) The Vote Counting Record must contain the following key information:
a) Time and place of vote counting;
b) Composition of the Vote Counting Committee;

c) Total number of Attendees entitled to vote participating in the meeting, total
number of votes;

d) Total number of Attendees entitled to vote participating in casting ballots;



e) Number and percentage of valid votes, invalid votes;
f) Number and percentage of voting rights for each matter;

g) The Vote Counting Record must be signed by members of the Vote Counting
Committee.

Article 11: Speaking at the Meeting

Attendees wishing to speak must raise their Voting Card or register to speak and only speak with
the consent of the Presiding Board. The Presiding Board shall arrange for Attendees to speak
based on the meeting agenda time. The Presiding Board may prioritize Attendees who register
to speak first and whose opinions are relevant to the meeting agenda. Speeches should be

concise, relevant to the topic being discussed at the Meeting, and should not repeat opinions
already expressed by other Attendees.

Article 12: GMS Meeting Minutes

12.1 The content of the Meeting shall be recorded in Minutes. The Minutes shall be prepared
in Vietnamese and signed by the Presiding Board and the Secretary.

12.2 The GMS Meeting Minutes must be announced before the Meeting and approved by the

Meeting before its conclusion.

12.3 The GMS Meeting Minutes, Shareholder Eligibility Verification Record, Vote Counting
Record, and other documents recording the proceedings and results of the Meeting must be
stored at the Company's headquarters.

12.4 The GMS Meeting Minutes must be published on the Company's website within twenty-
four (24) hours from the end of the GMS meeting and sent to all Shareholders within 15 days
from the end of the GMS.

Article 13: Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders

13.1 Based on the results at the Meeting, the Presiding Board, on behalf of the GMS, shall issue
the GMS Resolution on the matters approved by the Meeting.

13.2 The Resolution must be published on the Company's website within twenty-four (24) hours
from the end of the GMS meeting and sent to all Shareholders within 15 days from the end
of the GMS,

13.3 Requests to cancel GMS Resolutions shall be carried out in accordance with the Company's
Charter and enterprise law.



Article 14: Effectiveness of the Regulation

14.1 This Regulation takes effect immediately upon its approval by the Meeting through voting
until it is amended as stipulated in Article 14.2 below.

14.2 This Regulation may be amended from time to time based on the proposal of the Company's
Board of Directors and must be approved by the GMS through voting.

14.3 The Presiding Board is responsible for conducting the Meeting in accordance with this
Regulation. Shareholders or authorized representatives and other attendees of the Meeting
are responsible for implementing the provisions of this Regulation.

ON BEHALF OF THE
GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
PRESIDING BOARD

PHAN HONG MY PHIIONG
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o\ SAD MAI VIET ULATION ON THE ELECTIONOF

ZEORS AND SUPERVISORY BOARD MEMBERS FOR THE

TERM 2022-2027

—  Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;

= Pursuant to the Charter of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders on March 18, 2022,

The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS) of Sao Mai Viet Investment
and Development Joint Stock Company stipulates the Regulation on the election of Board of
Directors (BOD) and Supervisory Board (SB) members for the term 2022-2027 with the
following contents:

Article 1. Scope of Application and Interpretation of Terms
1.1 Seope ol application

This Regulation governs the election of Board of Directors and Supervisory Board
members for the term 2022 — 2027 of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock
Company at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders;

This Regulation applies to all shareholders owning voting shares and authorized
representatives of shareholders (according to the shareholder list closed on May 26, 2025,
provided by the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation).

1.2 Interpretation of terms

— In this Regulation, the following terms and abbreviations are understood as follows:
—  Company: Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company

- GMS: General Meeting of Shareholders

—  Meeting: The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

— BOD: Board of Directors

— SB: Supervisory Board

Article 2. Election Principles

The election shall be conducted in accordance with the Law, the Charter, ensuring
democracy and the legitimate rights of all shareholders.

Article 3, Standards and Conditions for BOD Members, Supervisors

To be implemented in accordance with the Charter of Sao Mai Viet Investment and
Development Joint Stock Company, Article 155 and Article 169 of Enterprise Law No.
59/2020/QH14.



Article 4. List, Candidate Dossiers, and Term of Office of BOD Members, Supervisory
Board

According to the list of candidates for the election of BOD and Supervisory Board
members for the remaining term 2022-2027 approved by the GMS.

Article 5. Number of BOD Members, Supervisory Board Members for the Term 2022-2027

—  The number of BOD members to be elected is: 04 BOD members; of which the current
number of BOD members is 03 members, and at the 2025 Annual GMS, 01 additional member
will be elected.

—  The number of Supervisory Board members to be elected is: 03 Supervisors; of which the
current number of Supervisory Board members is 03 members, and at the 2025 Annual GMS, 01
replacement member will be elected.

Article 6. Election Method

—  Pursuant to Clause 2, Article 25 of the Charter of Sao Mai Viet Investment and
Development Joint Stock Company and Clause 3, Article 148 of Enterprise Law No.
59/2020/QH14, the voting for the election of Board of Directors and Supervisory Board
members must be conducted by cumulative voting. Accordingly, each shareholder has a total
number of voting rights corresponding to the total shares owned multiplied by the number of
members 10 be elected to the Board of Directors or Supervisory Board.

—  Sharcholders may cumulate all their total voting rights for one or more candidates but
mdy HoL exeeed e number ol BUL/BBL menbers approved by the General ivieeung ol
Shareholders.

—  The number of votes (or voting rights) for each candidate may vary depending on the
confidence of the sharcholder/sharcholder's representative in each candidate. The total voting
rights a sharcholder votes for candidates may not exceed the total voting rights of that
shareholder/sharcholder's representative (in case of a valid authorization, the authorized person
(shareholder's representative) has full voting rights).

Article 7. Ballot Papers and Method of Filling Out Ballots

Shareholders/shareholder representatives shall conduct elections using ballot papers
provided to each shareholder. Accordingly:

— If voting all votes for one candidate or distributing votes equally among several
candidates, the shareholder/shareholder representative shall mark the empty box next to "Vote all
votes for one (01) candidate" for the corresponding candidates.

—  If voting an unequal number of votes for multiple candidates, the shareholder/shareholder
representative shall clearly write the number of votes in the box "Vote a specific number of votes
for each candidate" for the corresponding candidates.

—  After filling out the ballot paper, the shareholder/sharcholder representative shall cast the
ballot into the ballot box of the Vote Counting Committee. Sharcholders/shareholder
representatives do not have the right to change election results after casting their ballot into the
ballot box. The election result recorded shall be the result recorded on the final ballot paper at the
time voting concludes as stipulated.

The following ballot papers shall be considered invalid:
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—  The number of candidates voted by the shareholder/shareholder representative is greater
than the number of BOD/SB members approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

—  The ballot where the total votes for the candidates by the representative do not equal the
total votes indicated on the ballot paper.

—  The ballot does not vote for any BOD/SB candidate;

—  Invalid ballots will be discarded by the Vote Counting Committee during the counting
process.

Article 8: Vote Counting Committee, Voting Principles, and Vote Counting Principles

8.1 Vote Counting Committee:

~ The Vote Counting Committee shall be nominated by the Presiding Board and approved by
the General Meeting of Shareholders;

~ The Vote Counting Committee is responsible for:
» Guiding the distribution of ballot papers, casting of votes, and counting of ballots;
e Reviewing, evaluating, and concluding on invalid ballots and summarizing any

complaints regarding elections (if any);

e Preparing a vote counting record, announcing the election results, and the list of elected
individuals;

e Sealing the ballot papers and handing over the Vote Counting Record and all-ballot
k aarcl Vs B iG}é“"‘\
papers to the Presiding Board; —ZP)

vy . ‘ TN

e[n addition to duties related to the election of BOD/SB members, the Vote &?%wm
Committee shall report the results of voting on other matters requiring shaygholder
opinion at the Meeting; il VIE

e Performing other assigned duties.

—  Members of the Vote Counting Committee must not be on the list of no
candidates for the BOD, SB.
8.2 Voting Principles

—  The voting process shall take place during the time stipulated in the Meeting Agenda and
under the direction of the Meeting Presiding Board.

—  Shareholders/sharcholder representatives attending the Meeting shall vote by secret
ballot. From the time the Vote Counting Committee completes collecting ballots from
shareholders/shareholder representatives, shareholders do not have the right to change any

content already voted on. The shareholder's voting result is recorded as the final result and no
complaints/lawsuits related to this result are allowed.

8.3 Vote Counting Principles:

- Vote counting must begin immediately after voting concludes.

—  Vote counting results are compiled based on the results recorded on the ballots of
attending sharcholders.



Article 9. Principles for Election of BOD Members, Supervisory Board

—  The elected BOD member shall be 01 person, and the elected Supervisor shall be 01
person, and shall be carried out in accordance with Clause 2, Article 25 of the Charter of Sao
Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company and Clause 3, Article 148 of
Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 as follows:

—  Elected BOD members and Supervisors shall be determined by the number of votes,
ranked from highest to lowest, starting from the candidate with the highest number of votes until
the number of BOD members and Supervisors stipulated in this Regulation is sufficient.

—  In case two or more candidates receive the same number of votes for the last remaining
position on the Board of Directors or Supervisory Board, a re-election shall be held among those
candidates with equal votes.

Article 10. Preparation and Announcement of Election Minutes.

~  The Vote Counting Committee must prepare minutes of the election results. The full text
of the election minutes must be announced before the Meeting.

Article 11. Resolution of Complaints

—  Complaints regarding the election and vote counting shall be resolved by the Presiding
Board and recorded in the minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Article 12, Effectiveness of the Regulation

—  This Regulation consists of 12 Articles, shall be publicly read before the General Meeting
of Shareholders, and shall take effect immediately upon its approval by the General Meeting of
Shareholders through voting./.

ON BEHALF OF THE GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PHAN HONG MY PHUONG



SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT AND SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK Independence — Freedom — Happiness
COMPANY '

Ho Chi Minh City, day ... month ... 2025

REPORT

2025

To: The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

Pursuant to the Company's Charter and Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders dated April 26, 2024, the Board of Directors respectfully reports to the General
Meeting on the operational situation of the Board of Directors in 2024 and the plan for 2025 as
follows:

1. RESULTS OF OPERATION TN 2024
1.1 Personnel of the Board of Directors

- The current Board of Directors of the Company consists of 03 members. Specifically, the
personnel of the Board of Directors includes:

Start Date/End Date as
Board Member
No. Board Member Position . L.
Appointmen Dismissal

t Date date

1 Ms. Phan Hong My Phuong Chairman 24/03/2022

2 | Ms. Vu Thi Nhu Mai Member 18/03/2022

3 | Ms. Nguyen Thi Le Thanh Member 20/05/2023

- The Board of Directors operates on the principle of collective leadership, individual
responsibility, majority decision-making, exercising rights and obligations according to the
Company's Charter, the Board of Directors' operating regulations, and legal provisions. Board
members are assigned specific tasks based on the principle of leveraging each member's strengths,
creating collective intellectual power to fulfill the responsibilities of the Board of Directors in the
most effective manner as prescribed.



1.2 Guidance on implementing the General Meeting of Sharcholders' Resolution

To implement the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the
Board of Directors has resolutely implemented the contents in accordance with the Company's
Charter, internal regulations on corporate governance, Board of Directors' working regulations,
and legal provisions.

The Board of Directors has directed and supervised the activities of the General Director,
promptly resolving arising issues within its authority, creating favorable conditions for the General
Directot's operational management.

The results of implementing the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders' Resolution are as
follows:

- Regarding business results: Although in 2024, the Vien Lien high-end residential and
beachfront villa project was still in the investment phase and had no revenue from real estate
business activities, the revenue source still depended on legal consulting activities for other
businesses and was only enough to cover the Company's operating costs. Specifically: Profit
after tax after deducting financial adjustments was only: 1,341,501 VND.

- Implementation of the Vien Lien project: All legal procedures have been basically completed
to be granted 100% clean land area, basic design has been appraised, EIA, fire prevention and
fighting have been approved, and procedures for applying for infrastructure construction
permits for the project are being linalized.

- Selection of auditing unit: On June 6, 2024, the Board of Directors issued a Resolution
seiceting  soutici Accounting and Auditing Flnancial Consulung Service Co., Lid,
(AASCS) to review the semi-annual financial statements and audit the 2024 financial
statements of the Company.

< Regarding salaries, remuneration, and other income of the Board of Directors, Supervisory
Board, and Company management in 2024: The Board of Directors unanimously decided
not to pay remuneration for 2024,

- Regarding dividends: Due to the absence of revenue {rom the Vien Lien high-end residential
and beachfront villa project in 2024, and the Company's revenue being derived from
consulting, the Board of Directors unanimously decided not to pay dividends for 2024.

% Regarding charter capital increase: The Board of Directors has issued resolutions to support
the capital increase application submitted to the State Securities Commission. Currently, the
State Securities Commission has approved the capital increase, and the capital increase has
been completed, raising the total charter capital from 156,176,320,000 VND to
426,176,320,000 VND.

1.3 Other activities of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors successfully chaired and organized the 2024 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders, supervising and directing information disclosure with the aim of
ensuring transparency and accuracy in accordance with regulations.
In 2024, the Board of Directors organized 12 regular and extraordinary direct meetings to
promptly consider and approve resolutions/decisions related to matters under the authority of the
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Board of Directors; supervised the General Director in implementing the resolutions/decisions of
the Board of Directors and the General Meeting of Shareholders; and fully disclosed information
as required. The Board members have fulfilled their responsibilities as Company managers with a
sense of responsibility for the work and development of the Company, coordinating effectively
with the Supervisory Board to ensure the transparency of the Company's operations..

Resolutions of the Board of Directors in 2024

No. | Resolution Number Date B - Content
| 66A/NQ/HDQT-UNI | 06/06/2024 Resolution on signing the audit contract for the 2024
financial statements
2 62/NQ/HPQT-UNI 09/07/2024 Resolution on approving the Company's private
placement registration dossier
Resolution on organizing a written opinion poll of
s shareholders to approve the adjustment of the plan to
3 289{NQ%O§?MDQ : 28/08/2024 | use the proceeds from the private placement approved
in General Meeting of Shareholders Resolution No.
264A/NQ/DHDPCD-UNI
Resolution on erganizing a written opinion poll of
: 2 shareholders to approve the adjustment of the plan to
4 SN QI%%;UHBQW 30/08/2024 | use the proceeds from the private placement approved
il Generald :'u;uui.ius of Shiarcholders Resolutlon INo. \
264A/NQ/DHDCD-UNI
5 170A/2024/NQ/HDQT- 16/09/2024 Resolution on approving proposal No. 169/2024/TTr- b:
UNI HDQT-UNI dated 16/09/2024
6 [71A/2024/NQ/HDQT- 16/09/2024 Resolution on establishing a task force to count votes WE.
UNI for written shareholder opinions |
Resolution on approving the plan to use the proceeds 2|
s from the private placement approved in General
’ AAHQEIRQI-URL | AH0R/0R Meeting of Shareholders Resolution 264A and General
Meeting of Shareholders Resolution 280
g 41A/NQ/HDQT-UNI 30/09/2024 Resolution on approving the implementation of the
7 private placement plan ]
9 S2ANQHDOT-UNI | 30/09/2024 Resolution on approving the Company's private
placement registration dossier
10 | 1611A/NQ/HDOT-UNI | 15/11/2024 Resolution on approving the Company's private
placement registration dossier
| 271A/2024/NQ/HBQT- 27/11/2024 Resolution on signing a loan agreement to supplement
UNI working capital for business operations
12 | 213A/NQHDQT-UNI | 04/12/2024 Resolution on approving the Company's private

placement registration dossier




13 66A/NQ/HDQT-UNT | 06/06/2024 Resoll_ltmp on signing the audit contract for the 2024
financial statements
14 62/NQ/HDOT-UNI 09/07/2024 Resolution on approving thg: Company's private
placement registration dossier -
Resolution on organizing a written opinion poll of
" shareholders to approve the adjustment of the plan to
15 289{NQ%(;21?'{HDQ F_ 28/08/2024 | use the proceeds from the private placement approved
in General Meeting of Shareholders Resolution No.
264A/NQ/DHDCD-UNI
Resolution on organizing a written opinion poll of
8 - shareholders to approve the adjustment of the plan to
16 "OO{NQ?%? HEQT 30/08/2024 | use the proceeds from the private placement approved
in General Meeting of Shareholders Resolution No.
264A/NQ/DHDCD-UNI
17 170A72024/NQ/HDQT- 16/09/2024 Resolution on approving proposal No. 169/2024/TTr-
UNI HDQT-UNI dated 16/09/2024
T v $ Sali T 5 5
8 171A/2024/NQ/HDQT 16/09/2024 RESOIL.ItIOI'l on es‘rabhshma_ a task force to count votes
UNI for written shareholder opinions
Resolution on approving the plan to use the proceeds
from the private placement approved in General
0 AOA/NOQ/POT-UNT | 20/092024 ; s _
: HARNYEBLTUNL | bABa Meeting ot Shareholders Resolution 204A and General
Meeting of Shareholders Resolution 280
) | A/NG/HD | S0/0512 Reenlntinn an n:"p{\rm:ing tha implnnmﬂtm-inn nfthe
U | 4IA/INQGHDUI-UNL | 300972024 priieate plaseientplan
21 42A/NQ/HPQT-UNI 30/09/2024 Resolution on approving th? Company's private
placement registration dossier

1.4 Assessment of the General Director's and other executive's performance

The Board of Directors' supervisory activities over the Company's Executive Board are
carried out in accordance with the provisions of the internal regulations on corporate governance
and the Board of Directors' operating regulations. The Board of Directors' supervisory activities
over the Executive Board are carried out through various forms such as: organizing meetings
chaired by the Board of Directors, attending regular meetings organized by the General Director,
and reviewing reports from the General Director.

Through supervisory activities, it is observed that:

- In 2024, the General Director organized and managed the Company's business activities in
accordance with the duties and powers stipulated by law, the Company's Charter, the Company's
internal management regulations, and fully implemented the resolutions and decisions of the Board
of Directors. The General Director has fully provided information and facilitated the Supervisory
Board's access to and inspection of the Company's financial situation and other activities;

- The Executive Board has maintained a good schedule of monthly and quarterly meetings to
summarize, evaluate, and draw lessons to adjust management and production solutions flexibly
and effectively.

- With the achieved results in completing legal procedures for the project and seeking business
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opportunities to cover corporate expenses during the project investment period, the Board of
Directors highly appreciates the Executive Board's management performance in 2024.

1.  WORK PLAN FOR 2025

Continuing the positive momentum in 2024's operational results, 2025 is identified as a
crucial year for the Company to overcome current difficulties and build a foundation for the
upcoming period of stability and development.

In 2025, the Board of Directors sets out the following tasks:
- Successfully organize the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders;
- Continue to innovate and improve the effectiveness of corporate governance, direct and
coordinate with the General Director to successfully implement the 2025 business plan with the
targets approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders;
. Continue to research and rearrange the organizational structure to focus on management, be
flexible in operating production organization, optimize cost utilization, and exploit human
resources, increasing efficiency and labor productivity.
- Direct, coordinate, and supervise the General Director to effectively perform the following

tasks:
+ Regarding development orientation: Complete the granting of infrastructure
construction permits for the entire Vien Licn high-end residential and beachfront villa project,

deploy a complete and synchronous technical infrastructure system, build apartment buildings and
villas. and hand aver recettlement land nlots 1o residents to stahilize their lives, Rrino the main
revenue to the enterprise from the Company's real estate business activities..

+ Continue to accelerate the completion of the internal management regulation system to
enhance the effectiveness of governance and operation. Improve human resource management
mechanisms and policies, competitive compensation to develop a high-quality team of managers,
experts, and engineers, meeting the needs of production and business in the new phase;

+  Successfully implement the 2025 Business Production Plan according to the set targets
for revenue, profit, etc ...

This concludes the Board of Directors' report on the 2024 operational results and
the direction and tasks for 2025,

Sincerely thank you./.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
Recipients: CHAIRMAN

- As above;

- Board of Directors, Supervisory
Board;

- (posted on website);

- Archive: Office, Board of ] ]
Directors. PHAN HONG MY PHUONG




SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT AND SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK Independence — Freedom — Happiness
COMPANY

Ho Chi Minh City, day ... month ... 2025

RT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK
COMPANY

(At the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders)

Dear Valued Shareholders!

- Pursuant to the functions and duties of the Supervisory Board stipulated in the Enterprise
Law; the Charter on ciganization and operation of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development
Joint Stock Company and other relevant legal provisions.

- Pursuant (o e Kesoluiion o) the 2025 Annuai eneral peeling of sharenotaers dated

May 20, 2023.

- Pursuant to the audited financial statements for 2024 of Sao Mai Viet Investment and
Development Joint Stock Company;

- Pursuant to the results of monitoring, inspection, and supervision of the Company's
management and business operations in 2024.

The Supervisory Board respectfully reports to the General Meeting of Shareholders on the status
of supervision at the Company in 2024 as follows:

I. Activities of the Supervisory Board

In 2024, the Supervisory Board maintained regular operations, fully attended meetings of
the Board of Directors, the Executive Board at regular and extraordinary meetings related to the
Company's operations to grasp the actual business situation, and contributed opinions in achieving
the planned objectives approved by the General Meeting of Sharcholders.

In addition, the Supervisory Board carried out inspection and supervision in conjunction
with functional departments and divisions, contributing to risk management and improving the
company's governance quality. Key activities included:

- Supervising the implementation of the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders. Supervising compliance with laws, the Company's Charter, and the implementation
of Resolutions and Decisions of the Board of Directors.



- Supervising compliance with the Company's regulations, procedures, and functional
departments, as well as the Company's subordinate units.

- Supervising the implementation of the 2024 business plan and financial situation.

- Other activities as stipulated by law and the Company's charter.

In 2024, in addition to regular meetings, the Supervisory Board also organized other
meetings to discuss and agree on certain operational contents of the Supervisory Board, arising

issues, and exchange professional work, etc., with the full participation of all Supervisory Board

members. The main contents of the regular meetings of the Supervisory Board in 2024 are as
follows:

| No. |Numberof - * Main Content
participating
members
| 33 - Assessment of the Supervisory Board's operational results in 2024.
2

- Verification of the 2024 financial statements (audited).

- Assessment of Q1/2024 operational results and planning for
Q2/2024.

2 3/3 - Verification of Q1/2024 financial statements.
- Consensus on the report content to be submitted to the 20235
Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders.

- Accpcoment nf OV /2024 Aneratinnal veenlte and nlannine for
: 14| . & i ' & =0} L La

3 33 Q3/2024.
' - Verification of the semi-annual financial statements for 2024
(reviewed).
- Assessment of Q3/2024 operational results and planning for
4 3/3 Q4/2024.

- Verification of Q4/2024 financial statements.

During the course of performing its supervisory duties on behalf of shareholders, the
Supervisory Board has been facilitated by the Board of Directors and the Company's Executive
Board to fulfill its duties.

I1. Supervisory Board's Supervision Results

1. Supervision of the implementation of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders' resolution

1.1 Profit distribution in 2024

The profit after tax after deducting financial adjustments amounted to: 1,341,501 VND,
which the Board of Directors agreed to retain to continue business operations for 2025,

1.2 2024 business resulls

The Company has settled and independently audited its financial statements in accordance
with relevant current legal provisions. The results of the key indicators are as follows:




Unit: VND

Indicator Performance in 2023
| 1. Profit before tax 23.081.960
2. Totalrevenue _1067.037.037
P Trr—— (cwectml) e =

1.3 Remuneration payment for the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board:

The Board of Directors unanimously decided not to pay remuneration to the Board of

Directors and the Supervisory Board in 2024, specifically as follows:

- Board of Directors (03 members): 0 VND/person/month;
- Supervisory Board (03 members): 0 VND/person/month.

1.4 Implementation of investment projects:
The Company has implemented investment projects as planned, specifically:
The Vien Lien high-end residential and beachfront villa project in Rach Ham Hamlet, Ham
Ninh Commune, Phu Quoc City, Kien Giang Province, with a scale of 11.3ha: land
acquisition and site clearance have been completed, and currently, the project's clean land
ratio is 100%.

Legal: Procedures for obtaining infrastructure construction permits are underway, expected
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conditions for sales in accordance with legal regulations.
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The investment project was implemented in compliance with relevant legal provisions.

In parallel with the current project implementation, the Board of Directors continues to seek
land funds to develop additional real estate projects..

2. Superyvision of financial situation
The Supervisory Board has periodically discussed and exchanged with the company's
independent audit unit regarding the audit scope and audit results. The company has
organized accounting work in compliance with relevant current legal provisions; completed
financial reports on time.
Based on quarterly periodic reports, semi-annual financial statements, and the 2024 financial
statements reviewed/audited by AASC Southern Accounting and Auditing Financial

Consulting Service Co., Ltd., the Company's financial situation is reflected by the following
indicators:



I. BALANCE SHEET

As of December 31, 2024 | Unit: VND
No. | Content 311272024 3122023
I | Current Assets 556.460.221.632 496.961.727.955
| | Cash and cash equivalents 613.710.967 3.448.126.695
5 | Short-term receivables 84.928.980.370 81.254.292.370
3 | Inventory 461.641.532.569 402.999.562.548
4 | Other current assets 9.275.997.726 9.259.746.342
11 | Non-current Assets 0 0
TOTAL ASSETS 556.460.221.632 496.961.727.955
11 | Liabilities 392.335.309.756 332.838.157.580
| | Short-term liabilities 392.335.309.756 111.453.935.308
5 | Long-term liabilities 0 221.384.222.272
v Owner's £quity 164.124.911.876 164.123.570.375
1 Owner's invested capital 156.176.320.000 156,176,320,000
9) Sharé premium 1 .4?6.860.000 1,476,860,000
3 | Development investment fund 94.830.030 94,830,030
4 | Undistributed profit 6.376.901.846 6.375.560.345
4.1 | Undistributed profit from prior periods 6.375.560.345 5,709.898.316
42 | Undistributed profit for the current period ‘1 .341.501 665.662.029

TOTAL CAPITAL SOURCES

556.460.221.632

496.961.727.955




I1. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
_ |
No. Content 31/12/2024 31/12/2023
I Operating revenue | T 16%7_0_3703? . 1.71_03)%_“
2 Financial operating revenue 300.733 '. 458.395 /
3 Enterprise administration expenses 763.275.131 1,434.620.170
4 Other income 23.166.212 744.832.034
5 Other expenses 90.740.336 90.891.705
6 Total accounting profit before tax 23.081.960 868.190.372
7 Profit after corporate income tax 1.341.501 665.662.029
8 Basic earnings per share 0 43

3. Results of supervision over the activities of the Board of Directors, Executive
Board, and shareholders

3.1  Regarding the Board of Directors

& The Company's Board of Directors has seriously implemented the contents approved by the
2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, strictly complying with legal provisions as
well as the Company's organizational and operational charter. |he meetings and activities of
the Board of Directors were organized and conducted in accordance with the Company's
Charter and current laws with high consensus among members. In 2024, the Board of
Directors held regular meetings, extraordinary meetings, and also through written opinion
polls to issue 21 resolutions, decisions, Board of Directors meeting minutes, and many other
documents. The Board of Directors' resolutions are consistent with the functions and powers
stipulated by law and the Company's Charter, and also ensure timely issuance of guidelines
for the Company's operations to proactively respond to changes affecting the Company's
business activities.

3.2 Regarding the Executive Board

The Executive Board has fully and promptly implemented the decisions and resolutions of
the Board of Directors, ensuring the achievement of the Company's set business plan targets,

complying with legal provisions, delegation of authority in the Charter, and the Company's internal
regulations,

All management levels, functional departments, individuals, and related units of the
Company strictly and fully comply with internal governance regulations, procedures, and rules.

3.3 Regarding shareholders

In 2024, the Supervisory Board did not receive any requests or demands for inspection




from shareholders regarding the activities of the Board of Directors, the Executive Board, and
management personnel in the Company.

4. Recommendations and proposals

- Continue to maintain good governance and operation, creating conditions for the
Company to continue stable development, achieve and exceed the targets assigned by the General
Meeting of Shareholders, ensuring maximum benefits for shareholders as well as ensuring benefits
for employees;

- Accelerate the implementation of the construction of the Vien Lien high-end residential
and beachfront villa project and sell products to generate high revenue for the company, while
continuing to seek and develop new land funds.

This is the entire content of the Supervisory Board's report on the status of supervisory

work in 2024, respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and
approval.

Sincerely thank you!

ON BEHALF OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD



SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT Independence — Freedom — Happiness
STOCK COMPANY e

No.: 01/2025/TTr-HPQT-UNI -~
? -HPQ Ho Chi Minh City, day 39 month (05 2025

SUBMISSION

Regarding the approval of the audited financial statements for 2024,
business results, and profit distribution plan

To: THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QHI14 dated June 17, 2020, of the
National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam;

- Pursuant to the current Charter of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock
Company;

- Pursuant to the audited financial statements for 2024 of the Company;

1. The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders

ar concideration and aneroval fhp I o A Faasatad ahodnaeande B 0o il
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Auditing & Accounting Financial Consulting Services Company Limited (AASCS),
including the following contents:

— Independent audit report: Expressed an unqualified opinion.
— Balance sheet as of December 31, 2024.

— Income statement for 2024.

- Cash flow statement for 2024.

Notes to the financial statements.

In which, some key indicators in the audited financial statements for 2024 are as follows:

Unit: VND
No. Key indicators Financial Statements
1 Total assets 556.460.221.632
2 Net revenue 1.067.037.037
3 Profit before tax 23.081.960
4 Profit after tax . 1.341.501

Detailed content of the 2024 audited financial statements of Sao Mai Viet Company is
published on the website: www.saomaiviet.net.




2. The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders
for consideration and approval the profit distribution and fund allocation plan for
2024 of Sao Mai Viet Company, specifically as follows:

Unit: VND
No. Content Amount Notes
I Undistributed profit after tax 1.341.501
1 Retained from previous year
2 2024 (audited financial statements) 1.341.501
11 Profit after tax to be distributed 0
1| Financial contingency fund S ] I
2 Development investment fund 0
3Bmmsand “elfaieﬁmd N RV 0 R
111 . Undistributed profit after tax l'etaing_(!___m___ B __1_3i1_‘i{ll )

In 2024, the Company is in the process of legalizing the project and investing in
infrastructure development tor the Vien Lien high-end residential and beachiront villa project.
Revenue was low, mainly from consulting activities. Therefore, the Board of Directors
proposes that all undistributed profit after tax be retained for business operations in 2025.

In accordance with regulations, the Company has disclosed information on the audited
financial statements and the profit explanation report to the State Securities Commission,
Hanoi Stock Exchange, and on the Company's website: www.saomaiviet.net .

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval.
Sincerely thank you!

Recipients:

- Shareholders;

- Board of Directors, General
Director;

- Archive: Office.

PHAN HONG MY PHUONG




SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT Independence — Freedom — Happiness
STODCKCONMPARY = dedceesewis

No.: 02/2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI

Ho Chi Minh City, day30) monthQ% 2025

SUBMISSION

Re: Remuneration payment for the Board of Directors, Supervisory Board in 2024
and payment plan for 2025

JTo: THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020, of the
National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam;

- Pursuant to the General Meeting of Shareholders Resolution dated April 26,
2024, on approving the remuneration payment plan for the Board of Directors
and Supervisory Board in 2024.

The Board of Directors of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock
Company respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and
approval the remuneration payment for the Board of Directors, Supervisory Board in 2024 and
the payment plan for 2025, specifically as follows:

1. Finalization of remuneration for the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board
in 2024;

The remuneration plan for the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board in 2024
(including personal income tax) approved by the General Meeting of Sharcholders on April 26,
2024, was not to exceed 2% of the profit after tax for 2024. However, the business results did
not nmicel expectations and there was o profit. Therefore, the Board of Directors unanimously

decided not to pay remuneration to the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board for 2024.

2. Remuneration for the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board in 2025:

Approve the remuneration plan for the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board in
2025 (including personal income tax): not to exceed 2% of the profit after tax for 2025.

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes and assigns the Board of Directors to
decide the principles, levels, and forms of remuneration payment, bonuses, and other benefits
for the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board based on work performance and the
Company's business results, ensuring compliance with the Charter, the Company's

salary/compensation regulations, and relevant current regulations.



Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for approval!

Recipients:

- Shareholders;

- Board of Directors, General
Director;
Archive: Office.

PHAN HONG MY PHUONG



SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT

Independence — Freedom — Happiness

STOCK COMPANY

No.: 03/2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI =
g L Ho Chi Minh City, day®). monthQ% 2025

SUBMISSION

Re: Approval of 2025 business plan targets and dividend payout
ratio

To: THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020, of the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam;

Pursuant to the current Charter of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock
Company,

[he Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Sharcholders for
consideration and approval the 2025 business production plan targets as follows:

Unit: VND

No. Key targets 2025 Plan
1 Revenue - 65.000.000.000
2 | Profit before tax ) 8.000.000.000
3 | Profit after tax B 6.000.000.000
4 2025 Dividend payout ratio 5%

Authorize the Board of Directors to actively decide on adjustments to the business plan, the
2025 dividend payout rate, and the form of dividend payment (cash or issuance of additional
shares) bascd on the actual business situation in 2025.

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeling of Shareholders for consideration and
approval,

Sincerely thank you!

Recipients: Qe THE BOARD OF
DIRE TORS
- Shareholders; HAIRMAN
- Board of Directors, General
Director;

Archive: Office.

PHAN HONG MY PHUONG



SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT Independence — Freedom — Happiness
STOCK COMPANY
No.: 04/2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI Ho Chi Minh City, day 20 month (5 2025
SUBMISSION

Re: Selection of independent audit firm for 2025

To: THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Through the process of researching and evaluating the capabilities of independent
audit firms approved by the Ministry of Finance and the State Securities Commission as
qualified independent audit organizations for listed companies, the Board of Directors
(BOD) introduces and selects the following independent audit firm from the list of qualified
independent audit firms for listed organizations issued by the Ministry of Finance:

1 — Southern Auditing and Accounting Financial Consulting
Service Co., Ltd. (AASCS)
Address: 29 Vo Thi Sau, Da Kao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City

To perform the audit of the semi-annual financial statements and the annual linancial
statements for 2025.

;;.\Jb'pk.;\;llﬂl.i'llj Dl.li..)il.jlll.l\.:\.: (AW L:.I.L \.;_.Ibllk.,l(ll I\'J’.le.}l.il.l}‘_.-" l.J.I’.‘ Slliil\.‘uilui\‘lk.ld J’.‘Uj CU[ID;\.‘IUI&LL;\JII 'dlll.i.
approval of the following contents:

- Approval of the selection of the aforementioned audit organization to perform the
independent audit of the company's financial statements for 2025.

- In case, due to other objective reasons, it is not possible to sign a contract with the
aforementioned audit firm, the General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the Board of
Directors to select another independent audit firm from the list of qualified independent audit
firms for listed organizations issued by the Ministry of Finance.

- The Board of Directors authorizes the legal representative to negotiate the terms of
implementation and necessary procedures to carry out the audit work, and to fully report the
audit results in accordance with legal regulations and the company's charter.

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and
approval.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

7 CONG T JRMAN
Recipients: 5(  ¢O PHAN
DAV TUVA PHAT TRIEN
- As above;

- Archive: Office..

PHAN HONG MY PHUONG



SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT
AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT
STOCK COMPANY

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIET NAM

Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No.: 05/2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI Ho Chi Minh City, day ) month 09 2023

SUBMISSION

(Re: Approving investment cooperation with Kyoritsu Maintenance Vietnam Co., Lid.)
To: THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to;

. Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National Assembly of the Socialist
Republic of Vietham on June 17, 2020, effective from January 01, 2021;

= Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 passed by the National Assembly of the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019, effective firom January 01, 2021;

- Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020, of the Government
promulgating regulations detailing the implementation of a number of articles of the
Securities Law, effective from January 01, 2021,

- Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC of the Ministry of Finance issued on December 31,
2020, guiding a number of articles on corporate governance applicable to public
companies;

Chwrier of Suv Mai Viel {nvesiment i Dun'ufu;mn:ui Joiid Siock Cothypany
(“Charter”);
. Based on the Company's business operations.

The Board of Directors ("BOD") respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders

T . . 1 s - . _
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Approval of the principle of investment cooperation between Sao Mai Viet Investment and
Development Joint Stock Company and Kyoritsu Maintenance Vietnam Co., Litd.

Based on Kyoritsu Maintenance Vietnam Co., Ltd. ("Kyoritsu Company"), Kyoritsu
Company is the legal investor of the Project of Office Building combined with Tourist Apartments
— The One Tower at land plot No. 163, map sheet No. 4, 2/9 Street, Binh Hien Ward, Hai Chau
District, Da Nang City ("Project") under Land Use Rights Certificate No. V571610, issued by Da
Nang City People's Committee on October 22, 2002. Scale: 1,853.25 m2, the Project includes a
25-story building + 03 basement floors.

Therefore, the Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of

Shareholders to approve the following contents:

1. Consensus in principle and approval of plans for UNI to cooperate with Kyoritsu Company

and/or its parent company, affiliated companies of Kyoritsu Company to contribute



capital/purchase shares/repurchase capital contributions, acquire the Company, form joint
ventures, cooperate, etc., to carry out real estate business activities according to the

registered business lines in accordance with legal provisions.

Participation ratio in capital contribution/share purchase/repurchase of capital contributions:
all or part of the charter capital of Kyoritsu Company and/or its parent company, affiliated
companies of Kyoritsu Company, depending on agreements with relevant parties and within

the maximum limits stipulated by law.

Purchase price: By agreement based on the assessment of the enterprise's current status and

agreement with relevant parties.

Transaction value, investment value, capital contribution, cooperation, etc.: 35% or more

compared to the total assets of UNI recorded in the most recent audited financial statements.

Assign/authorize the Board of Directors with full authority to decide and organize the
implementation of cooperation with Kyoritsu Company to contribute capital/purchase
shares/repurchase capital contributions, acquire the Company, form joint ventures,

cooperate, elc., to carry out real estate business activities. Organize the implementation of

Aot wlare s srassr 5 ks snaEs] Mesties mf Qlaealiotdnss T fha pasipar sl
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meeting. The Board of Directors has full authority to negotiate with relevant parties, work,
exchange, agree with competent state agencies, and decide on all matters related to the entire
cooperation transaction with Kyoritsu Company and/or its parent company, affiliated

companies of Kyoritsu Company.

During the implementation process, the Board of Directors is authorized to decide on matters
within the scope of assigned duties and to delegate. decentralize, and assign to the Chairman
of the Board of Directors, General Director, and other individuals in the Company to perform

the above-mentioned tasks.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Sharcholders for

consideration and approval.

Recipients:

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

i

.‘ By / I -
Y/ CONGTY
CO PHAN

As addressed;
Archive: Office



SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT
AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT
STOCK COMPANY

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No.: 06/2025/TTr-HBQT-UNI Ho Chi Minh City, day'bQ month03 2025

SUBMISSION

(Re: Approving the use of assets to secure a loan for Kyoritsu Maintenance Vietnam Co.,
Ltd,)

To: THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to:

- Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National Assembly of the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020, effective from January 01, 2021;

= Securities Law No. 54/2019/OH14 passed by the National Assembly of the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019, effective from January 01, 2021;

- Decree No. 135/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020, of the Governmeni
promulgating regulations detailing the implemeniation of a number of articles of the
Securities Law, effective from January 01, 2021;

. Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC of the Ministry of Finance issued on December 31,

2020, guiding a number of articles on corporate governance applicable to public .I\\‘*‘fi@eﬁ
companies,;

- Charter of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company
(“Charter”);

Based aii the Compeaiy's business operations.

The Board of Directors ("BOD") respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders
("GMS") for consideration and approval of the following matters:
Approve the use of assets to secure a loan for Kyoritsu Maintenance Vietnam Co., Ltd. at
Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank ("VPBank").
Based on the fact that Kyoritsu Maintenance Vietnam Co., Ltd. has Ms. Vu Thi Nhu Mai as its

legal representative, who is also the legal representative of Sao Mai Viet Investment and

Development Joint Stock Company.
Based on the fact that Kyoritsu Maintenance Vietnam Co., Ltd. has Ms. Vu Thi Nhu Mai as its

legal representative, who is also the legal representative of Sao Mai Viet Investment and

Development Joint Stock Company.



According to legal provisions: (i) Clause 46, Article 4 of Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 dated
November 26, 2019, and (ii) Point d, Clause 23, Article 4 of Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14
dated June 17, 2020, Sao Mai Viet Company and Kyoritsu Company have related party
relationships. Therefore, in the process of cooperating with Kyoritsu Company and/or its parent
company, affiliated companies of Kyoritsu Company, to contribute capital/purchase
shares/repurchase capital contributions, acquire the Company, form joint ventures, cooperate, etc.,
to carry out real estate business activities including investment, construction, capital arrangement,
use of assets as collateral, and fulfillment of development and business guarantee obligations, such
actions must be approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance with current legal
provisions.

Therefore, the BOD respectfully submits to the GMS to approve the following contents:

1. Approve Sao Mai Viet Company's use of assets to secure a loan for Kyoritsu Company at

VPBank, specifically:

Use the asset which is a part/whole of the Land Use Right under Land Use Rights
Certificate No. DD 357099, entry number in GCN register 22992 issued by Kien Giang Provincial
People's Committee on April 29, 2022, in Ham Ninh Commune, Phu Quoc City, Kien Giang
Province. owned hv Sao Mai Viet Companv. fo seenre all borrowine obligations of Kvoritan

Company at VPBank.

- Maximum security limit: 250,000,000,000 VND

- Purpose of loan security: Construction of the Office Building combined with Tourist

. S— T T Trrrrmr Pt moped

- Maximum security term: 60 months

- Collateral Asset: Land Use Right under Land Use Rights Certificate No. DD 357099,
entry number in GCN register 22992 issued by Kien Giang Provincial People's Committee
on April 29, 2022,

2. Assign/authorize the Board of Directors with full authority to decide and organize the
implementation of agreements, discussions, negotiations, and decisions on matters related
to the collateral such as rights and obligations with relevant parties, security amount, scope
of security, term of security, cases and methods of handling mortgaged assets, dispute
resolution methods, etc. Carry out notarization procedures and register secured transactions
with Kyoritsu Company, VPBank, and other related organizations and individuals.
Organize the implementation of detailed plans and report to the General Meeting of
Shareholders in the nearest annual meeting. The Board of Directors has full authority to

negotiate with relevant parties, work, exchange, agree with competent state agencies, and



decide on all matters related to the entire transaction of providing security for Kyoritsu
Company at VPBank in accordance with regulations.

3. During the implementation process, the Board of Directors is authorized to decide on
matters within the scope of assigned duties and to delegate, decentralize, and assign to the

General Director — legal representative, and other individuals in the Company to perform

the above-mentioned tasks.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Sharcholders for

consideration and approval.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Recipients:

’[  COPHAN  \
As addressed; BAUTUVA PHAT THE

- Archive: Office.



SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT Independence — Freedom — Happiness
STOCK COMPANY

No.: 07/2025/TTr-HPQT-
2 EHRRT-UN] Ho Chi Minh City, day W) month 0.'-13/2025

SUBMISSION

Re: Request for non-payment of dividends for 2024

To: THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 39/2020/QHI4 dated June 17, 2020, of the
National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam,

- Pursuant to the current Charter of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock
Company;

- Pursuant to the Company's audited financial statements for 2024,

The Board of Directors proposes that the General Meeting of Shareholders approve the non-
payment of dividends for 2024, for the following reasons:

In 2024, Sao Mai Viet Company is still in the stage of completing legal procedures for the
project to invest in and deploy the infrastructure of the Vien Lien high-end residential and
beachfront villa project. There has been no revenue from the project, and revenue is low, mainly
from investment consulting activities. In addition, there are high regular expenses such as interest
expenses, taxes payable to the state, support costs for residents around the project, contractor
payments, ele. ..

For the above reasons, the Board of Directors respectfully requests the General Meeting of
Shareholders to agree that the Company will not pay dividends for 2024,

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Sharcholders for consideration and
approval.

Sincerely thank you!

Recipients: ONB OARD OF DIRECTORS
MAN
- Shareholders: o
- Board of Directors, General \ 2
Director; : A0 MA' UIET

a—

- Archive: Office.

PHAN HONG MY PHUONG



SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT Independence — Freedom — Happiness
STOCK COMPANY = eecemcrmemeeee

Ho Chi Minh City, day 3 month V52025
No.: 08/2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI

SUBMISSION

Re: Approval of charter amendment and supplement

To: THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020, of the
National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam;
- Pursuant (o the current Chariter of Sao Mai Viel Investment and Development Joini Stock

Company;

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for

consideration and approval the amendment and supplement of the Charter.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
consideration and approval the amendment and supplement of the Charter. Based on the review,
the Board of Directors found that the Charter of Sao Mai Viet Company regarding the
arrangement of clauses and some contents has not been updated according to the mau Charter
issued with Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020, of the Ministry of
Finance guiding some articles on corporate governance applicable to public companies under
Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020, detailing the implementation of a

number of articles of the Securities Law.

Therefore, it is necessary to update the entire Charter in accordance with the regulations in
the mau Charter issued with Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020, of the

Ministry of Finance.

The General Meeting of Sharcholders agrees to authorize the Board of Directors to



proactively decide on amending and supplementing the contents of the Charter to comply with

legal regulations.

(Attached document: Draft amended Charter).

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval.

Sincerely thank you!

Recipients: ON BETYA : (. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Shareholders; o AN \¢
Board of Directors, General f DAUTU VA PHAT TRIEN =
Director; =

Archive: Office.

PHAN HONG MY PHUONG
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This Charter was approved by Resolution No. ... of the General Meeting of Shareholders on ...
month ... year 2025.

I. DEFINITIONS OF TERMS IN THE CHARTER

Article 1. Interpretation of terms

1. In this Charter, the following terms are construed as follows:

a) Charter capital is the total par value of shares sold or registered to be purchased upon
establishment of a joint stock company and as prescribed in Article 6 of this Charter;

b) Voting capital is equity capital, whereby the owner has the right to vote on matters within the
decision-making authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders;

c) The Law on Enterprises is the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17", 2020;

d) Law on Securities is the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 passed by the National Assembly
of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019;

¢) Vietnam is the Socialist Republic of Vietnam;
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Certificate (Enterprise Registration Certificate and equivalent documents);

g) The business operators are the General Director, Deputy General Director, Chief Accountant
and other operators as prescribed in the Company Charter;

h) Managers are person who manage a company, including the Chairman and members of the
Board of Directors, the General Director and individuals holding other management positions as
prescribed in the Company Charter;

i) Related Persons are individuals and organizations specified in Clause 46, Article 4 of the Law
on Securities;

1) Shareholder is an individual or organization that owns al least one share of a joint stock
company;

k) Founding shareholder is a shareholder who owns at least one common share and signs the list
of founding shareholders of a joint stock company;

1) Major Shareholder is a shareholder specified in Clause 18, Article 4 of the Law on Securities;

m) Operation Term is the period of operation of the Company as stipulated in Article 2 of this

Charter and the extension period (if any) approved by the Company's General Meeting of

Shareholders;
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n) The Stock Exchange is the Vietnam Stock Exchange and its subsidiaries..

2. In this Charter, references to one or more other provisions or documents include amendments,
supplements or replacement documents..

3. The headings (Sections, Articles of this Charter) are used for convenience of understanding the
content and do not affect the content of this Charter.

II. NAME, FORM, HEAD OFFICE, BRANCHES, REPRESENTATIVE
OFFICES, BUSINESS LOCATIONS, TERM OF OPERATIONS AND
LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE OF THE COMPANY

Article 2. Name, Form, Head Office, Branches, Representative Offices, Business locations
and Term of Operations of the Company

1. Name of the Company

- Name of the Company: SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

- The abbreviated name:

Y Thh ramrany o n iatnt oftnels cnmmante 1t Taaal cfatie in aranrdnrnen vt ageeorrt Tavge A

Vietnam.
3. Company registered office:

- Head office address: A3.4A12 The GoldView Apartment, 346 Ben Van Don Street, Ward 1,
District 4, Ho Chi Minh City

- Telephone: 078 678 1977

- Fax:

- Email: saomaiviet.uni@gmail.com
- Website: saomaiviet.net

4. The Company may establish branches and representative offices in the business area to carry
out the Company's operational objectives in accordance with the decision of the Board of Directors
and within the scope permitted by law.

5. Unless the operation is terminated before the deadline specified in Clause 2, Article 54 or the
operation is extended according to the provisions in Article 55 of this Charter, the Company's
operation term is indefinite from the date of establishment.



Article 3, Legal representative of the Company

The Company has 01 legal representative who is the General Director.

The rights and obligations of the legal representative are prescribed by law and the Company

Charter.

I1I. OBJECTIVES, SCOPE OF BUSINESS AND ACTIVITIES OF THE

COMPANY

Article 4. Objectives of the Company

1. Company's business lines:

Industry
No. Industry name
code
I Afforestation, forest care and forestry tree nursery
Details: Afforestation. 0210
Z Construction of houses for residence 4101
3 Construction of houses for non-residential purposes 4102
4, Construction of railway works 4211
5. Construction of road works 4212
I I'_‘nhojﬂ irtinn Al atlhar nioil nnn;nnru'in ovvnrlie
) - 4299
Details: construction of civil and industrial works
7. Demolition 4311
8. Site preparation 4312
0. Building completion 4330
10. | Other specialized construction activities 4390
e p . . . 5229
11. | Other support services related to transportation
. y 5510
12. | Short-term accommodation services
Details: Hotel business (not operating at headquarters)

— e NN \oil
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Industry
No. Industry name
code
13. | Financial service support activities not classified elsewhere
Details: Investment consulting activities (except financial, accounting,
legal consulting).
! . _ 6810
14. | Real estate business, land use rights owned, used or leased
Details: Real estate business. Housing business. House rental for
business purposes (kiosks, shopping centers). Infrastructure rental.
15 C i ‘oker: i g o 6820
; onsulting, brokerage, real estate auction, land use rights auction
Details: excluding asset auctions
: o s 020
16. | Management consulting activities t
Details: excluding financial, accounting and legal consulting
S T i 7320
17. | Market research and public opinion polling
Details: excluding public opinion polling services.
I8. | Advertisine 10
Details: Commercial advertising services.
o i 43 ; i R 7410
19. | Marketing services Specialized design activities
Details: interior and exterior decoration construction
T P . . 8730
ol ik v‘.b“‘..nﬁ-na ._.\.w.--..-.x-uuuu;u.]n.; Al v o .
Details: Organizing events, exhibitions, organizing trade introductions
and promotions (not use fire or explosion effects; not use explosives,
flammable substances, chemicals as props, tools to perform cultural
programs, cvents, movics) |

2. The Company's operating objective: becoming a large-scale Company, providing good services
to the market, bringing benefits to sharcholders.

Article 5. Scope of business and Activities of the Company

The Company is permitted to conduct business activities in the fields specified in this Charter, has
registered, notified changes to the registration content to the business registration authority and
has announced on the National Business Registration Information Portal. In case the Company
conducts business in the field of conditional investment and business, the Company must satisfy
all business conditions as prescribed by the Investment Law and relevant specialized laws.




IV. CHARTER CAPITAL, SHARES, FOUNDING SHAREHOLDERS

Article 6. Charter Capital, Shares, Founding Sharcholders

1. The Company's charter capital is 426,176,320,000 VND (in words: Four hundred twenty six
billion, one hundred seventy six million, three hundred twenty thousand VND).

The total charter capital of the Company is divided into 42,617,320 shares with a par value of
10,000 VND/share.

2. The Company may change its charter capital when approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders and in accordance with the provisions of law.

3. The Company's shares on the date of approval of this Charter include common shares and
preferred shares (if any). The rights and obligations of shareholders holding each type of shares
are stipulated in Article 12 and Article 13 of this Charter.

4. The Company may issue other types of preferred shares after approval by the General Meeting
of Shareholders and in accordance with the provisions of law.

5. Name, address, number of shares and other information about founding shareholders as
prescribed by the Law on Enterprises.

Ordinary chares must he offered to evicting charsholders in nranortion fo their ownerchin of
ordinary shares in the Company, unless otherwise decided by the General Meeting of Sharcholders,
the number of shares that sharcholders do not register to buy in full will be decided by the Board
of Directors of the Company. The Board of Directors may distribute such shares to shareholders
and others on conditions no more favorable than those offered to existing sharcholders, unless
otherwise approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

6. The Company may purchase shares issued by the Company itself in the manner prescribed in
this Charter and current laws.

7. The Company may issue other types of cecurities in accordance with the provicions of law,

Article 7. Stock certificate

1. Shareholders of the Company are issued stock certificates corresponding to the number of shares
and type of shares owned.

2. Stocks are securities that confirm the legal rights and interests of the owner to a part of the equity
capital of the issuing organization. Stocks must have full contents as prescribed in Clause 1, Article
121 of the Law on Enterprises.

3. Within 45 days from the date of submission of a complete application for transfer of share
ownership as prescribed by the Company or within 45 days from the date of full payment for the
purchase of shares as prescribed in the Company's share issuance plan (or another period as
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prescribed by the issuance terms), the owner of the shares shall be issued a share certificate. The
owner of shares shall not have to pay the Company the cost of printing the share certificate.

4. In case a share certificate is lost, damaged or otherwise destroyed, the shareholder shall be
reissued a new share certificate by the Company upon the shareholder's request. The shareholder's
request must include the following contents:

a) Information about the share certificate that has been lost, damaged or otherwise destroyed;

b) Commitment to take responsibility for any disputes arising from the reissuance of a new share
certificate.

Article 8. Other securities certificates

Bond certificates or other securities certificates issued by the Company must be signed by the legal
representative and sealed by the Company.

Article 9. Transfer of shares

1. All shares are freely transferable unless otherwise provided by this Charter and the law. Shares
listed and registered for trading on the Stock Exchange are transferred in accordance with the

provisions of the law on securitics and the sceuritics market.

2. Shares that have not been fully paid for cannot be transferred and enjoy related rights such as
the right to receive dividends, the right to receive shares issued to increase share capital trom
equity capital, the right to purchase newly offered shares and other rights as prescribed by law.

Article 10. Revocation of shares (in case of business registration)

1. In case a shareholder fails to pay in full and on time the amount payable to purchase shares, the
Board of Directors shall notify and have the right to request that shareholder to pay the remaining
amount and be responsible for the total par value of the shares registered to purchase for the
Company's financial obligations arising from failure to pay in full.

2. The above payment notice must clearly state the new payment period (at least 07 days from the
date of sending the notice), the payment location and the notice must clearly state that in case of
failure to pay as required, the unpaid shares will be revoked.

3. The Board of Directors has the right to revoke the shares that have not been paid in full and on
time in case the requirements in the above notice are not implemented.

4. The revoked shares are considered shares that are eligible for sale as prescribed in Clause 3,
Article 112 of the Law on Enterprises. The Board of Directors may directly or authorize the sale
or redistribution under the conditions and methods that the Board of Directors deems appropriate.

5. Co Shareholders holding revoked shares must give up their shareholder status with respect to
those shares, but must still be responsible for the total par value of the shares registered for
purchase for the Company's financial obligations arising at the time of revocation according to the

6



decision of the Board of Directors from the date of revocation until the date of payment. The Board
of Directors has full authority to decide on the compulsory payment of the entire value of the
shares at the time of revocation.

6. The notice of revocation shall be sent to the holder of the revoked shares before the time of
revocation. The revocation shall remain effective even in the event of errors or negligence in
sending the notice.

V. ORGANIZATIONAL, MANAGERIAL AND SUPERVISORY
STRUCTURE

Article 11. Organizational, Managerial and Supervisory Structure

The Company's organizational, managerial and supervisory structure includes:
1. General Meeting of Shareholders.

2. Board of Directors.

3. Board of Supervisors.

4, General Director.

VI. SHAREHOLDERS AND GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Article 12, Rights of Shareholders

1. Ordinary sharcholders have the following rights:

a) Attending and sneakine at the General Meetine of Shareholders and exercisine the rieht to vote
directly or through an authorized representative or in other forms as prescribed by the Company
Charter or the law. Each ordinary share has one vote;

b) Receiving dividends at a rate determined by the General Meeting of Shareholders:

¢) Having priority in purchasing new shares corresponding to the ratio of ordinary shares owned
by each shareholder in the Company;

d) Freely transferring his/her shares to others, except in the cases specified in Clause 3, Article
120, Clause 1, Article 127 of the Law on Enterprises and other relevant legal provisions;

¢) Reviewing, looking up and extracting information about the name and contact address in the list
of shareholders with voting rights; requesting to correct inaccurate information;

f) Reviewing, looking up, extracting or photocopying the Company Charter, minutes of the
General Meeting of Shareholders and Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders;



g) When the Company is dissolved or bankrupt, receiving a portion of the remaining assets
corresponding to the percentage of shares owned in the Company;

h) Requesting the Company to repurchase shares in the cases specified in Article 132 of the Law
on Enterprises;

i) Be treated equally. Each share of the same type gives the shareholder equal rights, obligations
and benefits. In case the Company has types of preferential shares, the rights and obligations
attached to the types of preferential shares must be approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders and fully disclosed to the shareholders;

i) Having full access to periodic information and extraordinary information published by the
Company in accordance with the provisions of law;

k) Having their legitimate rights and interests protected; requesting the suspension or cancellation
of resolutions and decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors in
accordance with the provisions of the Law on Enterprises;

[) Other rights as prescribed by law and this Charter.
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2. Shareliolders or groups of sharcholders owning 5% o1 e of the total number of conunon

shares have the following rights:

a) Requesting the Board of Directors to convene a meeting of the General Meeting ol Shareholders
in accordance with the provisions of Clause 3, Article 115 and Article 140 of the Law on
Enterprises;

b) Reviewing, looking up, and extracting the minutes and resolutions, decisions of the Board of
Directors, semi-annual and annual financial reports, reports of the Board of Supervisors, contracts,
transactions that must be approved by the Board ol Directors and other documents, except lor
documents related to trade secrets and business secrets of the Company;

¢) Requesting the Board of Supervisors to inspect each specific issue related to the management
and operation of the Company when deemed necessary. I'he request must be in writing and must
include the following contents: full name, contact address, nationality, legal document number of
the individual for individual shareholders; name, enterprise code or legal document number of the
organization, head office address for institutional shareholders; number of shares and time of share
registration of each shareholder, total number of shares of the group of shareholders and ownership
ratio in the total number of shares of the Company; issues to be inspected, purpose of inspection;

d) Proposing issues to be included in the agenda of the General Meeting of Shareholders. The
proposal must be in writing and sent to the Company at least 3 working days before the opening
date. The proposal must clearly state the name of the sharcholder, the number of each type of
shares of the shareholder, and the issues proposed to be included in the agenda;

e) Other rights as prescribed by law and this Charter.
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3. Shareholders or groups of sharcholders owning 10% or more of total common shares have the
right to nominate people to the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board.

Article 13. Obligations of shareholders

Ordinary shareholders have the following obligations:
I. Paying in full and on time the number of shares committed to be purchased.

2. Not withdrawing capital contributed in common shares from the Company in any form, except
in cases where the Company or another person buys back the shares. In case a shareholder
withdraws part or all of the contributed capital contrary to the provisions of this clause, that
shareholder and the person with related interests in the Company shall be jointly liable for the
debts and other property obligations of the Company within the value of the withdrawn shares and
any damages incurred.

3. Complying with the Company Charter and the Company's Internal Management Regulations.

4. Complying with the Resolutions and Decisions of the General Meeting of Sharcholders and the
Board of Directors.

5. Keeping confidential the information provided by the Company in accordance with the
provisions of the Company Charter and the law; only using the information provided to exercise
dild Prolect one s 1IEEILIMALE rigis and Merests; Swicty proioitilg he disseninauon or Copying
or sending of information provided by the Company to other organizations and individuals.

6. Attending the General Meeting of Shareholders and exercise voting rights through the following
forms:

a) Attendine and votine directly at the meetine:

b) Authorizing other individuals or organizations to attend and vote at the meeting;

¢) Attending and voting through online conference, electronic voting or other electronic forms;
d) Sending voting ballots to the meeting via mail, fax, email;

¢) Sending voting ballots by [other means] as prescribed in the Company Charter.

7. Be personally responsible when performing one of the following acts in the name of the
Company in any form:

a) Violating the law;

b) Conducting business and other transactions for personal gain or to serve the interests of other
organizations or individuals;

¢) Paying debts that are not due in the face of financial risks to the Company.
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8. Fulfilling other obligations as prescribed by current laws.

Article 14. General Mecting of Shareholders

1. The General Meeting of Shareholders, comprising all shareholders with voting rights, is the
highest decision-making body of the Company. The General Meeting of Shareholders shall meet
once a year within 04 (four) months from the end of the fiscal year. Unless otherwise provided in
the Company Charter, the Board of Directors shall decide to extend the annual General Meeting
of Shareholders if necessary, but not more than 06 months from the end of the fiscal year. In
addition to the annual meeting, the General Meeting of Shareholders may hold extraordinary
meetings. The venue of the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be determined as the place
where the chair attends the meeting and must be in Vietnam.

2. The Board of Directors convenes the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and selects a
suitable location. The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders decides on matters in accordance
with the provisions of law and the Company's Charter, especially approving the audited annual
financial statements. In case the Audit Report of the Company's annual financial statements
contains material exceptions, contrary audit opinions or rejections, the Company must invite a
representative of the approved auditing organization to audit the Company's financial statements
to attend the Annual General Meeting ot Shareholders and the representative of the above approved
auditing organization is responsible for attending the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of

uic Culnpaity.

3. The Board of Directors must convene an extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders in the
following cases:

a) The Board of Directors deems it necessary for the benefit of the Company;

\ rr v - (R ' Fan - . e ¥4 ~ . - o
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than the minimum number of members as prescribed by law;

¢) At the request of a shareholder or group of shareholders as prescribed in Clause 2, Article 115
of the Law on Enterprises; the tequest to convene a General Mecling of Shaichiolders must be
made in writing, clearly stating the reason and purpose of the meeting, with sufficient signatures
of the relevant sharcholders or the request must be made in multiple copies and must include
sufficient signatures of the relevant shareholders:

d) At the request of the Supervisory Board;
e) Other cases as prescribed by law and this Charter.
4. Convening an extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders

a) The Board of Directors must convene a General Meeting of Shareholders within 60 (sixty) days
from the date the number of members of the Board of Directors, independent members of the
Board of Directors or members of the Board of Supervisors remaining as prescribed in Point b,
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Clause 3 of this Article or from the date of receipt of the request prescribed in Point ¢ and Point d,
Clause 3 of this Article;

b) In case the Board of Directors does not convene a General Meeting of Sharcholders as
prescribed in Point a, Clause 4 of this Article, within the next 30 days, the Board of Supervisors
shall replace the Board of Directors to convene a General Meeting of Sharcholders as prescribed
in Clause 3, Article 140 of the Law on Enterprises;

¢) In case the Board of Supervisors fails to convene the General Meeting of Shareholders as
prescribed in Point b, Clause 4 of this Article, the sharcholder or group of shareholders as

-

prescribed in Point ¢, Clause 3 of this Article shall have the right to request the Company's

representative to convene the General Meeting of Sharcholders as prescribed in the Law on
Enterprises.

In this case, the shareholder or group of shareholders convening the General Meeting of
Shareholders may request the Business Registration Authority to supervise the order and
procedures for convening, conducting the meeting and making decisions of the General Meeting
of Shareholders.

d) Procedures for organizing the General ivieeting of Shareholders as prescribed in Clause 5,
Article 140 of the Law on Enterprises.

Article 15, Rights and obligations of the General Meeting of Shareholders

1. The General Meeting of Shareholders has the following rights and obligations:
a) Approving the development orientation of the Company;

b) Deciding on the types of shares and the total number of shares of each type that are allowed to
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¢) Electing, dismissing, and removing members of the Board of Directors and members of the
Supervisory Board;

d) Deciding on investing or selling assets with a value of 35% or more of the total value of assets
recorded in the Company's most recent financial report.

¢) Deciding on amending and supplementing the Company Charter;
f) Approving the annual financial report;
g) Deciding on repurchasing more than 10% of the total number of shares sold of each type;

h) Reviewing and handling violations by members of the Board of Directors and members of the
Supervisory Board that cause damage to the Company and its shareholders;

i) Deciding on the reorganization and dissolution of the Company;

11,
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j) Deciding on the budget or total remuneration, bonuses and other benefits for the Board of
Directors and the Supervisory Board;

k) Approving the internal governance regulations; the operating regulations of the Board of
Directors and the Supervisory Board;

1) Approving the list of approved auditing companies; decide on the approved auditing company
to conduct inspections of the Company's operations, and dismiss approved auditors when deemed
necessary;

m) Other rights and obligations as prescribed by law.

2. The General Meeting of Shareholders discusses and approves the following issues:
a) The Company's annual business plan;

b) Audited annual financial statements;

¢) Report of the Board of Directors on the management and performance of the Board of Directors
and each member of the Board of Directors;

d) Report of the Board of Supervisors on the Coimnpany's busiiiess perforiiance, performeance of
the Board of Directors and the General Director;

¢) Self-assessment report on the performance of the Board of Supervisors and members ol the
Board of Supervisors;

f) Dividend level for each share of each type;
2) Number of members of the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors;

h) BElection, dismissal, removal ol members ol the Board of Directors and members ot the Board
of Supervisors;

i) Decision on the budget or total remuncration, bonuses and other benefits for the Board of
Directors and Board of Supervisors;

i) Approval of the list of approved auditing companies; decision on the approved auditing company
to conduct inspection of the company's activities when deemed necessary;

k) Supplement and amend the Company Charter;

1) Types of shares and number of new shares issued for each type of shares and the transfer of
shares by founding members within the first 03 years from the date of establishment;

m) Division, separation, consolidation, merger or conversion of the Company;

n) Reorganization and dissolution (liquidation) of the Company and appointment of a liquidator;
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0) Decision to invest or sell assets with a value of 35% or more of the total value of assets recorded
in the Company's most recent Financial Statement;

p) Decision to repurchase more than 10% of the total number of shares sold of each type;

q) The Company signs contracts and transactions with the entities specified in Clause 1, Article

167 of the Law on Enterprises with a value equal to or greater than 35% of the total value of the
| g

Company's assets recorded in the most recent financial statements;

r) Approving transactions specified in Clause 4, Article 293 of Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated
December 31, 2020 of the Government detailing the implementation of a number of articles of the
Law on Securities;

s) Approving the internal regulations on corporate governance, the regulations on the operation of
the Board of Directors, the regulations on the operation of the Board of Supervisors;

t) Other issues as prescribed by law and this Charter.

3. All resolutions and issues included in the meeting agenda must be discussed and voted on at the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

Article 16. Authorization to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders

1. Shareholders or anthorized representatives of oreanizational shareholders mav directlv attend
the meeting or authorize one or more other individuals or organizations to attend the meeting or
attend the meeting through one of the forms specified in Clause 3, Article 144 of the Law on
Enterprises.

2. The authorization for an individual or organization to represent the General Meeting of
Shareholders as preseribed in Clavse 1 of this Article must be made in writine. The authorization
document shall be made in accordance with the provisions of civil law and must clearly state the
name of the authorizing shareholder, the name of the authorized individual or organization, the
number of authorized shares, the content of the authorization, the scope of authorization, the
duration of authorization, and the signatures of the authorizing party and the authorized party.

The person authorized to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders must submit the
authorization document when registering to attend the meeting. In case of re-authorization, the
meeting attendee must also present the original authorization document of the shareholder or the
authorized representative of the shareholder being an organization (if not previously registered
with the Company).

3. The voting ballot of the person authorized to attend the meeting within the scope of authorization
shall remain valid in the event of one of the following cases, except in the following cases:

a) The authorized person has died, has limited civil act capacity or has lost civil act capacity;

b) The authorized person has revoked the authorization;
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¢) The authorized person has revoked the authority of the person performing the authorization.

This provision shall not apply in the event that the Company receives notice of one of the above

events before the opening time of the General Meeting of Shareholders or before the meeting is
reconvened.

Article 17. Change of rights

1. The change or cancellation of special rights attached to a type of preferred shares shall be
effective when approved by shareholders representing 65% or more of the total number of votes
of all sharcholders attending the meeting. A resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders on
the content that adversely changes the rights and obligations of shareholders owning preferred
shares shall only be approved if approved by the number of preferred shareholders of the same
type attending the meeting owning 75% or more of the total number of preferred shares of that
type or approved by the preferred shareholders of the same type owning 75% or more of the total
number of preferred shares of that type in the case of passing the resolution in the form of obtaining
written opinions.

2. The organization of a meeting of shareholders holding a type of preferred shares to approve the
above-mentioned change of rishts is only valid when there are at least 02 shareholders (or their
authorized representatives) and holding at least 1/3 of the par value of the issued shares of that
type. In case there are not enough delegates as mentioned above. the meeting will be re-organized
within the next 30 days and the holders of shares of that type (regardless of the number of people
and shares) present in person or through authorized representatives are considered to have
sufficient number of delegates required. At the meetings of shareholders holding the above-
mentioned preferred shares, the holders of shares of that type present in person or through
representatives may request a secret ballot. Each share of the same type has equal voting rights at
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3. The procedures for conducting such separate meetings shall be similar to those prescribed in
Articles 19, 20 and 21 of this Charter.

4. Unless otherwise provided by the terms of issue of shares, the special rights attached to the
classes of shares with preferential rights in respect of some or all matters relating to the distribution
of profits or assets of the Company shall not be changed when the Company issues additional
shares of the same class.

Article 18. Convening, agenda and notice of invitation to the General Meeting of
Shareholders

1. The Board of Directors shall convene the annual and extraordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders. The Board of Directors shall convene the extraordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders in the cases specified in Clause 3, Article 14 of this Charter.

2. The person convening the General Meeting of Shareholders must perform the following tasks:

14



a) Preparing a list of shareholders cligible to attend and vote at the General Meeting of
Shareholders. The list of shareholders entitled to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders shall
be prepared no more than 10 (ten) days before the date of sending the notice of invitation to the
General Meeting of Shareholders. The Company must disclose information on the preparation of
the list of shareholders entitled to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders at least 20 (twenty)
days before the last registration date;

b) Preparing the agenda and content of the meeting;
¢) Preparing documents for the meeting;

d) Draft resolutions of the General Meeting of Sharcholders according to the expected content of
the meeting;:

e) Determining the time and place of the meeting;

f) Notifying and send notices of the General Meeting of Shareholders to all shareholders entitled
to attend the meeting;

g) Other tasks serving the meeting.

3. The notice of the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be sent to all shareholders by a method
that ensures that it reaches the shareholders' contact addresses, and shall be published on the
Company's website and the State Securities Commission and the Stock Exchange where the
Company's shares are listed or registered for trading. The person convening the General Meeting
of Shareholders shall send the notice of the meeting to all sharcholders on the List of Sharcholders
entitled to attend the meeting at least 21 days before the opening date of the meeting (calculated
from the date on which the notice is validly sent or transmitted). The agenda of the General
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be sent to the shareholders and/or posted on the Company's website. In the event that the
documents are not enclosed with the notice of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the notice of
invitation to the meeting must clearly state the link to all meeting documents for shareholders to
access, including:

=

a) Meeting agenda, documents used in the meeting;

b) List and detailed information of candidates in case of election of members of the Board of
Directors, members of the Supervisory Board;

c¢) Voting ballots;
d) Draft resolutions for each issue in the meeting agenda.

4. Shareholders or groups of shareholders as prescribed in Clause 2, Article 12 of this Charter have
the right to propose issues to be included in the agenda of the General Meeting of Shareholders.
The proposal must be in writing and must be sent to the Company at least 03 working days before
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the opening date of the meeting. The proposal must clearly state the name of the shareholder, the

number of each type of shares of the shareholder, and the issues proposed to be included in the
agenda.

5. The person convening the General Meeting of Shareholders has the right to reject the proposal
prescribed in Clause 4 of this Article if it falls under one of the following cases:

a) The proposal is not submitted in accordance with the provisions of Clause 4 of this Article;

b) At the time of the proposal, the shareholder or group of shareholders does not hold 5% or more
of common shares as prescribed in Clause 2, Article 12 of this Charter;

¢) The proposed issue is not within the scope of decision-making authority of the General Meeting
of Shareholders;

d) Other cases as prescribed by law and this Charter.

6. The person convening the General Meeting of Sharcholders must accept and include the
proposal specified in Clause 4 of this Article in the proposed agenda and content of the meeting,
except for the case specified in Clause 5 of this Article; the proposal is officially added to the

agenda and content of the mecting if approved by the General Meeting of Sharcholders.
Article 19. Conditions for holding a General Meeting of Sharcholders

I. A General Meeting of Shareholders shall be held when the number of shareholders attending the
meeting represents more than 50% of the total number of votes.

2. In case the first meeting does not meet the conditions for holding the meeting as prescribed in
Clause 1 of this Article, the notice of invitation to the second meeting shall be sent within 30 days
from the date of the first meeting, The second General Meeting of Shareholders shall be held when

the number of shareholders attending the meeting represents 33% or more of the total number of
votes.

3. In case the second meeting does not meet the conditions for holding the meeting as prescribed
in Clause 2 of this Article, the notice of invitation to the third meeting must be sent within 20 days
from the date of the intended second meeting. The third General Meeting of Shareholders shall be
held regardless of the total number of votes of the shareholders attending the meeting.

Article 20. Procedures for conducting meetings and voting at the General Meeting of
Shareholders

|. Before opening the mecting, the Company must carry out the procedure for registering
shareholders and must carry out the registration until all shareholders entitled to attend the meeting
are present and have registered in the following order:

a) When registering shareholders, the Company shall issue to each shareholder or authorized
representative with voting rights a voting card, on which is stated the registration number, full
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name of the shareholder, full name of the authorized representative and the number of votes of that
shareholder. The General Meeting of Sharcholders shall discuss and vote on each issue in the
agenda. Voting shall be conducted by voting in favor, against, and without opinion. The vote
counting results shall be announced by the Chairman immediately before the closing of the
meeting. The General Meeting shall elect those responsible for counting votes or supervising the
counting of votes at the request of the Chairman. The number of members of the vote counting

committee shall be decided by the General Meeting of Shareholders based on the request of the
Chairman of the meeting;

b) Shareholders, authorized representatives of organizational shareholders or authorized persons
who arrive after the meeting has opened shall have the right to register immediately and then have
the right to participate and vote at the General Meeting immediately after registration. The
chairman is not responsible for stopping the meeting to allow late shareholders to register and the
validity of previously voted contents remains unchanged.

2. The election of the chairman, secretary and vote counting committee is regulated as follows:

a) The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall chair or authorize another member of the Board
of Directors to chair the meeting of the General Meeting of Shareholders convened by the Board
of Directors. In case the Chairman is absent or temporarily unable to work, the remaining members
of the Board of Directors shall elect one of them to chair the meeting according to the majority
principle. In case no one can be clected as the chairman, the Head of the Supervisory Board shall
direct the General Meeting of Shareholders to elect the chairman of the meeting from among the
attendees and the person with the highest number of votes shall chair the meeting;

b) Except for the case specified in Point a of this Clause, the person who signs the convening of
the General Meeting of Shareholders shall direct the General Meeting of Shareholders to elect the
chairman of the meeting and the person with the highest number of votes shall chair the meeting;

c¢) The chairman appoints one or more people to act as meeting secretaries;

d) The General Mecting of Sharcholders cleets one or more people to the vote counting committec
upon the proposal of the meeting chairman.

3. The agenda and content of the meeting must be approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders in the opening session. The agenda must clearly and specifically specify the time for
each issue in the meeting agenda.

4. The meeting chairman has the right to take necessary and reasonable measures to conduct the
General Meeting of Shareholders in an orderly manner, in accordance with the approved agenda
and reflecting the wishes of the majority of attendees.

a) Arranging seating at the location of the General Meeting of Shareholders;

b) Ensuring safety for everyone present at the meeting locations;

17
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¢) Creating conditions for shareholders to attend (or continue to attend) the meeting. The convener
of the General Meeting of Shareholders has the full right to change the above measures and apply
all necessary measures. The measures applied may be issuing admission tickets or using other
forms of selection.

5. The General Meeting of Shareholders discusses and votes on each issue in the agenda. Voting
is conducted by voting for, against and without opinion. The vote counting results are announced
by the chairman immediately before the closing of the meeting.

6. Shareholders or authorized persons who arrive after the meeting has opened may still register
and have the right to vote immediately after registration; in this case, the validity of the contents
previously voted on shall not change.

7. The person convening or chairing the General Meeting of Shareholders shall have the following
rights:

a) Request all attendees to be subject to inspection or other lawful and reasonable security
measures;

b) Request the competent authority to maintain order at the meeting; expel from the General
Meeting of Shareholders those who do not comply with the chairman's authority, intentionally
disrupt order, prevent the normal progress of the meeting or do not comply with security inspection
requirements.

8. The Chairman has the right to postpone a General Meeting of Shareholders with a sufficient
number of registered attendees for no more than 03 working days from the date of the scheduled

opening of the meeting and may only postpone the meeting or change the meeting location in the
following cases:

a) The meeting location does not have enough convenient seats for all attendees;

b) The means of communication at the meeting location do not ensure that shareholders attending

the meeting can participate, discuss and vote;

¢) There are attendees who obstruct or disrupt order, posing a risk of making the meeting not be
conducted fairly and legally.

9. In case the chairman postpones or suspends the General Meeting of Shareholders contrary to
the provisions of Clause 8 of this Article, the General Meeting of Shareholders shall elect another
person from among the attendees to replace the chairman to conduct the meeting until its
conclusion; all resolutions passed at that meeting shall be effective.

10. In case the Company applies modern technology to organize the General Meeting of
Shareholders through online meetings, the Company shall be responsible for ensuring that
shareholders attend and vote by electronic voting or other electronic forms as prescribed in Article
144 of the Law on Enterprises and Clause 3, Article 273 of Decree No. 155/ND-CP dated
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December 31, 2020 of the Government detailing the implementation of a number of articles of the
Law on Securities.

Article 21. Conditions for the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders to be passed

1. A resolution on the following content shall be passed if approved by shareholders representing
65% or more of the total number of votes of all shareholders attending the meeting, except for the
cases specified in Clauses 3, 4 and 6, Article 148 of the Law on Enterprises:

a) Type of shares and total number of shares of each type;
b) Change of business lines, occupations and fields;
¢) Change of the Company's management structure;

d) Investment projects or sale of assets with a value of 35% or more of the total value of assets
recorded in the Company's most recent financial statements;

¢) Reorganization or dissolution of the Company:
f) Other matters as prescribed by the Company's Charter.

2. Resolutions are approved when approved by sharcholders holding more than 50% of the total
number of votes of all shareholders attending the meeting, except for the cases specified in Clause
I 0f this Article and Clauses 5, 4 and 0, Arucie 140 01 Uie Law 0l Lierprises.

3. Resolutions of the General Meeting of Sharcholders approved by 100% of the total number of
shares with voting rights are legal and effective even if the order and procedures for convening the
meeting and passing the resolution violate the provisions of the Law on Enterprises and the
Company Charter.

Article 22. Authority and procedures for obtaining written opinions of shareholders to pass
Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders

The authority and procedures for obtaining written opinions from shareholders to pass the
Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be implemented according to the
following provisions:

|. The Board of Directors shall have the right to obtain written opinions from shareholders to pass
all resolutions under the authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders when deemed necessary
for the benefit of the Company.

2. The Board of Directors shall prepare opinion forms, draft resolutions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders, documents explaining the draft resolutions and send them to all shareholders with
voting rights at least 10 days before the deadline for returning opinion forms. The requirements
and methods for sending opinion forms and accompanying documents shall be implemented
according to the provisions of Clause 3, Article 18 of this Charter.
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3. The opinion form must contain the following main contents:
a) Name, head office address, enterprise code;
b) Purpose of opinion collection;

¢) Full name, contact address, nationality, legal document number of the individual for individual
sharcholders; name, enterprise code or legal document number of the organization, head office
address for organizational shareholders or full name, contact address, nationality, legal document
number of the individual for the representative of the organizational shareholder; number of shares
of each type and number of votes of the shareholder:

d) Issues requiring opinion collection to pass a decision;

¢) Voting options include approval, disapproval and no opinion on each issue to be voted on;
f) Deadline for sending the completed ballot to the Company;

g) Full name and signature of the Chairman of the Board of Directors.

4. Shareholders may send the completed ballot to the Company by mail, fax or email according to

the following provisions:

a) In case of sending mail, the completed ballot must be signed by the individual shareholder, the
authorized representative or the legal representative of the shareholder being an organization. The
ballot sent to the Company must be contained in a sealed envelope and no one is allowed to open
it before counting the votes;

b) In case of sending by fax or email, the opinion form sent to the Company must be kept
confidential until the time of counting the votes;

¢) Opinion forms sent to the Company after the deadline specified in the content of the opinion
form or opened in case of sending by mail and disclosed in case of sending by fax or email are
invalid. Opinion forms not sent back are considered as non-voting forms.

5. The Board of Directors shall count the votes and prepare the minutes of the vote counting under
the witness of the Supervisory Board or of sharcholders who do not hold management positions in
the Company. The minutes of the vote counting must have the following main contents:

a) Name, head office address, enterprise code;
b) Purpose and issues for which opinions must be obtained to pass the resolution;

¢) Number of shareholders with total number of votes participated in the vote, in which the number
of valid votes and invalid votes are distinguished and the method of sending the votes, with an
appendix listing the shareholders participating in the vote;

d) Total number of votes in favor, against and abstentions for each issue;

20



¢) Issues passed and corresponding percentage of votes passed:;

f) Full name and signature of the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the vote counter and the vote
counting supervisor.

Members of the Board of Directors, the vote counter and the vote counting supervisor shall be
jointly responsible for the truthfulness and accuracy of the vote counting minutes; and jointly

responsible for damages arising from decisions passed due to dishonest and inaccurate vote
counting.

6. The minutes of the vote counting and the resolution must be sent to the shareholders within 15
days from the date of completion of the vote counting. The sending of the minutes of the vote
counting and the resolution can be replaced by posting on the Company's website within 24 hours
from the date of completion of the vote counting.

7. The returned ballots, the minutes of the vote counting, the adopted resolutions and the relevant
documents attached to the ballots must all be kept at the Company's head office.

8. A resolution is passed by way of obtaining written opinions from shareholders if' it is approved
by shareholders holding more than 50% of the total number of votes of all shareholders with voting
rights and has the same value as a resolution passed at the General Meeting of Shareholders.
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I. The General Meeting of Shareholders must be recorded in minutes and may be recorded or
recorded and stored in other electronic forms. The minutes must be prepared in Vietnamese, and
may be prepared in a foreign language and contain the following main contents:

a) Name, head office address, enterprise code;

b) Time and location of the General Meeting of Shareholders;
¢) Meeting agenda and content;

d) Full name of the chair and secretary;

e) Summary of the meeting proceedings and opinions expressed at the General Meeting of
Shareholders on each issue in the meeting agenda;

f) Number of shareholders and total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting,
appendix of the list of shareholders and shareholders' representatives attending the meeting with
the number of shares and corresponding number of votes;

g) Total number of votes for each voting issue, clearly stating the voting method, total number of
valid, invalid, approving, disapproving and abstaining votes; corresponding percentage of the total
number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting;

h) Issues approved and corresponding percentage of approved votes;
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i) Full name and signature of the chairman and secretary. In case the chairman and secretary refuse
to sign the meeting minutes, the minutes shall be valid if signed by all other members of the Board
of Directors attending the meeting and have full content as prescribed in this clause. The meeting
minutes shall clearly state the refusal of the chairman and secretary to sign the meeting minutes.

2. Minutes of the General Meeting of Sharcholders must be completed and approved before the
end of the meeting. The chairman and secretary of the meeting or other persons signing the minutes

of the meeting must be jointly responsible for the truthfulness and accuracy of the contents of the
minutes.

3. Minutes prepared in Vietnamese and foreign languages have the same legal effect. In case of
any difference in content between the minutes in Vietnamese and in foreign languages, the content
in the minutes in Vietnamese shall prevail.

4. Resolutions, Minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders, and related documents attached
to the meeting invitation must be kept at the Company's head office.

Article 24. Request to annul Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders

Within 90 days from the date of receipt of the resolution or minutes of the General Meeting of
Shareholders or the minutes of the results of the vote counting for the General Meeting of
Shareholders, the shareholder or group of shareholders specified in Clause 2, Article 115 of the
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resolution or part of the resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders in the following cases:

1. The order and procedures for convening the meeting and making decisions of the General
Meeting of Shareholders seriously violate the provisions of the Law on Enterprises and the
Company Charter, except for the case specified in Clause 3, Article 21 of this Charter.

2. The content of the resolution violates the law or this Charter.

VII. BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Article 25. Candidacy and nomination of members of the Board of Management

1. In case the candidates for the Board of Management have been determined, the Company must
publish information related to the candidates at least 10 days before the opening date of the General
Meeting of Shareholders on the Company's website so that shareholders can learn about these
candidates before voting. Candidates for the Board of Management must have a writien
commitment to the honesty and accuracy of the published personal information and must commit
to performing their duties honestly, carefully and in the best interests of the Company if elected as
a member of the Board of Management. Information related to candidates for the Board of
Management to be published includes:

a) Full name, date of birth;
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b) Professional qualifications:

¢) Work history;

d) Other management positions (including positions on the Board of Directors of other companies);
e) Interests related to the Company and related parties of the Company:

f) Other information (if any) as prescribed in the Company Charter;

g) Public companies must be responsible for disclosing information about companies where
candidates are holding positions as members of the Board of Directors, other management
positions and interests related to the company of candidates for the Board of Directors (if any).

2. Shareholders or groups of sharcholders owning 10% or more of the total number of common
shares have the right to nominate candidates for the Board of Directors in accordance with the
provisions of the Law on Enterprise and the Company Charter.

3. In case the number of candidates for the Board of Directors through nomination and candidacy
is still not enough as required in Clause 5, Article 115 of the Law on Enterprises, the incumbent
Board of Directors shall introduce additional candidates or organize nominations in accordance
with the provisions of the Company Charter, the Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance
and the Regulations on the Board of Directors' operations. The introduction of additional
candidates by the incumbent Board of Directors must be clearly announced before the General
Meeting of Shareholders votes to elect members of the Board of Directors in accordance with the
provisions of law.

4. Members of the Board of Directors must meet the standards and conditions as prescribed in
Clauses 1 and 2, Article 155 of'the Law on Enterprises and the Company Charter.

Article 26. Composition and term of office of members of the Board of Directors

1. The number of members of the Board of Directors shall be at least 03 and at most 11,

2. 1he term of oilice of a member of the Board ol Directors shali not exceed 05 years and may be
re-elected for an unlimited number of terms. An individual may only be elected as an independent
member of the Board of Directors of a company for no more than 02 consecutive terms. In case
all members of the Board of Directors end their terms at the same time, such members shall
continue to be members of the Board of Directors until a new member is elected to replace them
and take over the work.

3. The composition of the Board of Directors is as follows:

The structure of the Board of Directors of a public company must ensure that at least 1/3 of the
total number of Board members are non-executive members. The company shall limit the number
of Board members who concurrently hold executive positions of the Company to ensure the
independence of the Board of Directors.
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For listed companies, the total number of independent members of the Board of Directors must
ensure the following provisions:

a) There must be at least 01 independent member in case the company has 03 to 05 members on
the Board of Directors;

b) There must be at least 02 independent members in case the company has 06 to 08 members on
the Board of Directors;

¢) There must be at least 03 independent members in case the company has 09 to 11 members on
the Board of Directors,

4. A member of the Board of Directors shall no longer be a member of the Board of Directors in
the event that he/she is dismissed, removed or replaced by the General Meeting of Shareholders in
accordance with the provisions of Article 160 of the Law on Enterprises.

5. The appointment of a member of the Board of Directors must be announced in accordance with
the provisions of law on information disclosure on the stock market.

6. A member of the Board of Directors shall not necessarily be a shareholder of the Company.

Article 27. Powers and obligations of the Board of Directors

1. The Board of Directors is the management body of the Company, with full authority to decide
and exercise the rights and obligations of the Company on behalf of the Company, except for the
rights and obligations under the authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

2. The rights and obligations of the Board of Directors are stipulated by law, the Company Charter
and the General Meeting of Shareholders. Specifically, the Board of Directors has the following
richts and obligations:

a) Decide on the strategy, medium-term development plan and annual business plan of the
Company;
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¢) Decide on the sale of unsold shares within the number of shares that can be offered for sale of
each type; decide on raising additional capital in other forms;

d) Decide on the selling price of the Company's shares and bonds;

e) Decide on the repurchase of shares in accordance with the provisions of Clause 1 and Clause 2,
Article 133 of the Law on Enterprises;

f) Decide on investment plans and investment projects within the authority and limits prescribed
by law;
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g) Decide on solutions for market development, marketing and technology;

h) Approve purchase, sale, loan, lending contracts and other contracts and transactions with a value
of 35% or more of the total asset value recorded in the Company's most recent financial report,
[except in cases where the Company Charter stipulates a different ratio or value] and contracts and
transactions under the decision-making authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders as
prescribed in Point d, Clause 2, Article 138, Clauses | and 3, Article 167 of the Law on Enterprises;

i) Through contracts and transactions to provide loans or guarantees (including the use of assets to
secure loans) to related organizations of members of the Board of Directors, Supervisors, General
Directors, and other managers where the Company and such organizations are companies in the

same group or companies operating in a group of companies, including parent companies -
subsidiaries, economic groups;

i) Elect, dismiss, remove the Chairman of the Board of Directors; appoint, dismiss, sign contracts,
terminate contracts with the General Director and other important managers as prescribed in the
Company Charter; decide on salaries, remuneration, bonuses and other benefits of those managers;
appoint authorized representatives to participate in the Board of Members or General Meeting of
Shareholders of other companies. decide on remuneration and other benefits of those people:

k) Supervise and direct the General Director and other managers in the daily business operations
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1) Decide on the organizational structure, internal management regulations of the Company, decide
on the establishment of subsidiaries, branches, representative offices and capital contribution,
purchase of shares of other enterprises;

m) Approve the agenda and contents of documents for the General Meeting of Shareholders,
convene the General Meeting of Shareholders or collect opinions for the General Meeting of
Shareholders to pass resolutions;

n) Submit audited annual financial statements to the General Meeting of Shareholders;

0) Propose the dividend level to be paid; decide on the time limit and procedures for paying
dividends or handling losses arising during the business process;

p) Propose the reorganization or dissolution of the Company; request the bankruptey of the
Company;

q) Decide to issue the Board of Directors' operating regulations, internal regulations on corporate
governance after being approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders, and regulations on
information disclosure of the Company;

r) Other rights and obligations as prescribed by the Law on Enterprises, the Law on Securities,
other provisions of law and the Company Charter.
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3. The Board of Directors must report to the General Meeting of Shareholders on the results of the
Board of Directors' activities as prescribed in Article 280 of Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated
December 31, 2020 of the Government detailing the implementation of a number of articles of the
Law on Securities.

Article 28. Remuneration, bonuses and other benefits of members of the Board of Directors

I. The Company has the right to pay remuneration and bonuses to members of the Board of
Directors based on business results and efficiency.

2. Members of the Board of Directors are entitled to remuneration and bonuses. The remuneration
is calculated based on the number of working days required to complete the duties of the Board of
Directors and the daily remuneration. The Board of Directors estimates the remuneration for each
member based on the principle of consensus. The total remuneration and bonuses of the Board of
Directors are decided by the General Meeting of Shareholders at the annual meeting.

3. The remuneration of each member of the Board of Directors is included in the Company's
business expenses according to the provisions of the law on corporate income tax, shown as a

separate item in the Company's annual financial statements and must be reported to the General
Meeting of Shareholders at the annual meeting,

4. A member of the Board of Directors holding an executive position or a member of the Board of
Diteotols seiviiy ol subcutiinibices o tie Buatd of Diicciuis o1 perionining viici tsks beyond
the scope of the normal duties of a member of the Board of Directors may be paid additional
remuneration in the form of a lump sum, salary, commission, percentage of profits or in other
forms as decided by the Board of Directors.

5. Members of the Board of Directors are entitled to be reimbursed for all travel, accommodation,
nicals aud olic reusonabic expenses incuiod by icm in pafonning e teoponsibilitics as
members of the Board of Directors, including expenses incurred in attending meetings of the
General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors or subcommittees of the Board of
Directors.

6. Members of the Board of Directors may be purchased liability insurance by the Company after
approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders. This insurance does not include insurance for
the liabilities of members of the Board of Directors related to violations of the law and the
Company's Charter.

Article 29. Chairman of the Board of Directors

I. The Chairman of the Board of Directors is elected, dismissed or removed by the Board of
Directors from among the members of the Board of Directors.

2. The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall not concurrently be the General Director.

3. The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall have the following rights and obligations:
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a) Prepare the program and plan of activities of the Board of Directors;

b) Prepare the program, content, and documents for meetings; convene, chair, and preside over
meetings of the Board of Directors;

¢) Organize the adoption of resolutions and decisions of the Board of Directors;

d) Supervise the implementation of resolutions and decisions of the Board of Directors;

¢) Chair the General Meeting of Sharcholders;
f) Other rights and obligations as prescribed by the Law on Enterprises and the Company's Charter.

4. In case the Chairman of the Board of Directors submits a resignation letter or is dismissed or
removed from office, the Board of Directors shall elect a replacement within 10 days from the date
of receipt of the resignation letter or the dismissal or removal from office.

5. In case the Chairman of the Board of Directors is absent or unable to perform his/her duties,
he/she must authorize in writing another member to exercise the rights and obligations of the
Chairman of the Board of Directors. In case there is no authorized person or the Chairman of the
Board of Directors dies. goes missing, is detained. is serving a prison sentence. is serving an
administrative penalty at a compulsory drug rehabilitation facility, a compulsory education facility,
has fled from his/her place of residence, has limited or lost civil capacity, has difficulty in
cognition, controlling his/her behavior, is prohibited by the Court from holding a position,
practicing a profession or doing certain work, the remaining members shall elect one of the
members to hold the position of Chairman of the Board of Directors according to the principle of
majority approval of the remaining members until a new decision of the Board of Directors is
made.

Article 30. Meetings of the Board of Directors

I. The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall be elected at the first meeting of the Board of
Directors within 07 working days from the date of completion of the election of the Board of
Directors. This meeting shail be convened and chaired by the member with the highest number of
votes or the highest percentage of votes. In case there is more than one member with the highest
number of votes or the highest percentage of votes and equal, the members shall vote by majority
to select one of them to convene the meeting of the Board of Directors.

2. The Board of Directors shall meet at least once a quarter and may hold extraordinary meetings.

3. The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall convene a meeting of the Board of Directors in
the following cases:

a) At the request of the Board of Supervisors or an independent member of the Board of Directors;

b) At the request of the General Director or at least 05 other managers;
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¢) At the request of at least 02 members of the Board of Directors;

d) Other cases as stipulated in the Company Charter.

4. The request specified in Clause 3 of this Article must be made in writing, clearly stating the
purpose, issues to be discussed and decisions within the authority of the Board of Directors.

5. The Chairman of the Board of Directors must convene a meeting of the Board of Directors
within 07 working days from the date of receipt of the request specified in Clause 3 of this Article.
In case the meeting of the Board of Directors is not convened as requested, the Chairman of the
Board of Directors shall be responsible for any damages caused to the Company; the person
requesting shall have the right to replace the Chairman of the Board of Directors in convening the
meeting of the Board of Directors.

6. The Chairman of the Board of Directors or the person convening the meeting of the Board of
Directors must send a notice of meeting at least 03 working days before the meeting date. The
notice of meeting must specify the time and location of the meeting, the agenda, issues to be
discussed and decided. The notice of meeting must be accompanied by documents used at the
meeting and voting ballots of the members.

Notice of meeting of the Board of Directors may be sent by invitation, telephone, fax, electronic
means or other methods as prescribed in the Company Charter and shall be guaranteed to reach
the contact address ol each member of the Board of Directors registered with the Company.

7. The Chairman of the Board of Directors or the convener shall send the meeting notice and

accompanying documents to the members of the Supervisory Board as to the members of the Board
of Directors.
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have the right to discuss but not to vote.

8. A meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held when at least 3/4 of the total number of
membere attend the meeting. In case the meeting convened in accordance with the provisions of
this clause does not have enough members to attend the meeting as prescribed, it shall be convened
for the second time within 07 days from the date of the first scheduled meeting. In this case, the
meeting shall be held if more than half of the members of the Board of Directors attend the
meeting.

9. A member of the Board of Directors shall be considered to attend and vote at the meeting in the
following cases:

a) Attending and voting directly at the meeting;

b Authorizing another person to attend the meeting and vote as prescribed in clause 11 of this
Article;
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c) Attending and voting via online conference, electronic voting or other electronic forms;
d) Sending voting ballots to the meeting via mail, fax, email;

[0. In case of sending the ballot to the meeting by mail, the ballot must be contained in a scaled
envelope and must be delivered to the Chairman of the Board of Directors at least 01 hour before
the opening. The ballot shall only be opened in the presence of all attendees.

[1. Members must attend all meetings of the Board of Directors. Members may authorize another

person to attend the meeting and vote if approved by the majority of the members of the Board of
Directors.

12. Resolutions and decisions of the Board of Directors shall be adopted if approved by the
majority of the members attending the meeting; in case of equal votes, the final decision shall
belong to the side with the opinion of the Chairman of the Board of Directors.

13. The meeting of the Board of Directors may be held in the form of an online conference between
members of the Board of Directors when all or some members are at different locations, provided
that each member attending the meeting can:

a) Hear each other member of the Board of Directors speaking at the meeting;

b) Speak to all other members attending at the same time. Discussions between members may be
conducted directly by telephone or by other means of communication or a combination of these
methods. A member of the Board of Directors patticipating in such a meeting shall be considered
“present” at that meeting. The meeting location held in accordance with this provision shall be the
location where most members of the Board of Directors are present, or the location where the
Chairman of the meeting is present.

Decisions passed in a telephone meeting are properly organized and conducted, efiective
immediately upon the end of the meeting, but must be confirmed by the signatures in the minutes
of all members of the Board of Directors attending this meeting.

Article 31. Subcommittees under the Board of Directors

1. The Board of Directors may establish subcommittees to be in charge of tasks assigned by the
Board of Directors. The number of members of the subcommittee shall be decided by the Board
of Directors or in accordance with relevant legal provisions. The activities of the subcommittee
must comply with the regulations of the Board of Directors.

2. The implementation of decisions of the Board of Directors or of subcommittees under the Board
of Directors must comply with current legal provisions and provisions in the Company Charter
and Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance.
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Article 32. Person in charge of corporate governance

1. The Board of Directors of the Company must appoint at least 01 person in charge of corporate
governance to support corporate governance at the enterprise. The person in charge of corporate
governance may concurrently hold the position of Company Secretary as prescribed in Clause 5,
Article 156 of the Law on Enterprises.

2. The person in charge of corporate governance may not concurrently work for an approved
auditing organization that is auditing the Company's financial statements.

3. The person in charge of corporate governance has the following rights and obligations:

a) Advise the Board of Directors on organizing the General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance
with regulations and related work between the Company and shareholders;

b) Prepare meetings of the Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board and the General Meeting of
Shareholders at the request of the Board of Directors or the Supervisory Board;

¢) Advise on meeting procedures;

d) Attend meetings;

e) Advise on procedures for preparing resolutions of the Board of Directors in accordance with the
provisions of law;

f) Provide financial information, copies of Board of Directors meeting minutes and other
information to members of the Board of Directors and members of the Supervisory Board;

g) Monitor and report to the Board of Directors on the Company's information disclosure activities;
h) Be the contact point with interested parties:

i) Keep information confidential in accordance with the provisions of law and the Company's
Charter;

1) Other tights and obligations inaccordance with the provisions of law and the Company's Chatter.

VIII. GENERAL DIRECTOR AND OTHER MANAGERS

Article 33. Organization of management apparatus

The Company's management system must ensure that the management apparatus is responsible to
the Board of Directors and is subject to the supervision and direction of the Board of Directors in
the Company's daily business operations. The Company has a General Director, Deputy General
Directors, Chief Accountant and other management positions appointed by the Board of Directors.
The appointment, dismissal and removal of the above positions must be approved by resolution or
decision of the Board of Directors.
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Article 34. Company executives

I. Company executives include the General Director, Deputy General Directors, Chief Accountant
and other executives as prescribed in the Company Charter.

2. Upon the proposal of the General Director and with the approval of the Board of Directors, the
Company may recruit other executives with the number and standards in accordance with the
Company's management structure and regulations as prescribed by the Board of Directors. The
business executive must be responsible for supporting the Company to achieve its objectives in
operation and organization.

3. The General Director shall be paid salary and bonus. The salary and bonus of the General
Director shall be decided by the Board of Directors.

4. The salary of the executive shall be included in the Company's business expenses in accordance
with the provisions of the law on corporate income tax, shall be shown as a separate item in the
Company's annual financial statements and shall be reported to the General Meeting of
Shareholders at the annual meeting.

Article 35. Appointment, dismissal, duties and powers of the General Director
1. The Board of Directors shall appoint 01 member of the Board of Directors or hire another person

to be the General Director.

2. The General Director is the person who runs the daily business of the Company; is supervised
by the Board of Directors; is responsible to the Board of Directors and the law for the
implementation of assigned rights and obligations.

3. The term of office of the General Director shall not exceed 05 years and may be reappointed for
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prescribed by law and the Company's Charter.
4. The General Director has the following rights and obligations:

a) Decide on purchase, sale, loan, lending contracts and other contracts and transactions with a
value of less than 35% of'the total value of assets recorded in the Company's most recent financial
statements, except for contracts and transactions under the decision-making authority of the
General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors as prescribed in the Charter and the
Law on Enterprises;

b) Decide on matters related to the Company's daily business operations that are not under the
authority of the Board of Directors;

¢) Organize the implementation of resolutions and decisions of the Board of Directors;
d) Organize the implementation of the Company's business plan and investment plan;
e) Propose the Company's organizational structure and internal management regulations;

31

(P}

T =

= o

1=



) Appeint, dismiss, and remove management positions in the Company, except for positions under
the authority of the Board of Directors;

g) Decide on salaries and other benefits for employees in the Company, including managers under
the appointment authority of the General Director;

h) Recruit employees;
i) Propose plans to pay dividends or handle business losses;
j) Other rights and obligations as prescribed by law.

5. The Board of Directors may dismiss the General Director when the majority of the members of
the Board of Directors with voting rights present at the meeting agree and appoint a new General
Director to replace him.

IX. SUPERVISORY BOARD

Article 36. Nomination and candidacy of members of the Supervisory Board (Supervisors)

1. Nomination and candidacy of members of the Supervisory Board shall be carried out similarly
to the provisions in Clause 1 and Clause 2, Article 25 of this Charter.
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is not sufficient, the incumbent Supervisory Board may nominate additional candidates or organize
nominations in accordance with the provisions of the Company Charter, Internal Regulations on
Corporate Governance and Regulations on the Operation of the Supervisory Board. The
nomination of additional candidates by the incumbent Supervisory Board must be clearly
announced before the General Meeting of Shareholders votes to elect members of the Supervisory
Board in accordance with the provisions ol law.

Article 37. Composition of the Board of Supervisors

1. The number of members of the Board of Supervisors of the Company is 03 people. The term of
office of a member of the Board of Supervisors shall not exceed 05 years and may be re-elected
for an unlimited number of terms.

2. A member of the Board of Supervisors must meet the standards and conditions prescribed in
Article 169 of the Law on Enterprises and must not fall into the following cases:

a) Working in the accounting and finance department of the Company;

b) Being a member or employee of an independent auditing company that audits the financial
statements of the Company in the previous 03 consecutive years.

3. A member of the Board of Supervisors shall be dismissed in the following cases:
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a) No longer meeting the standards and conditions to be a member of the Board of Supervisors as
prescribed in Clause 2 of this Article;

b) Submitting a resignation letter and having it accepted;

¢) Other cases as prescribed in this Charter.

4. A member of the Board of Supervisors shall be dismissed in the following cases:
a) Failure to complete assigned tasks and work;

b) Failure to exercise his/her rights and obligations for 06 consecutive months, except in cases of
force majeure;

¢) Repeated or serious violations of the obligations of a member of the Board of Supervisors as
prescribed in the Law on Enterprises and the Company Charter;

d) Other cases as prescribed by the resolution of the General Meeting of Sharcholders.

Article 38. Head of the Board of Supervisors

1. The Head of the Supervisory Board is elected by the Supervisory Board from among the
members of the Supervisory Board; the election, dismissal and removal are based on the majority
principle. The Supervisory Board must have more than half of its members permanently residing
1 Vietndm, Lne Head ol the Supervisory bodrd nust have a university degree or higher in one ot
the following majors: economics, finance, accounting, auditing, law, business administration or a
major related to the business activities of the enterprise.

2. Rights and obligations of the Head of the Supervisory Board:
aY Convene meetines of the Sunervisorv Board:

b) Request the Board of Directors, the General Director and other executives to provide relevant
information to report to the Supervisory Board;

¢) Prepare and sign the report of the Supervisory Board aller consuiting with the Board of Direciors
to submit to the General Mecting of Shareholders.

Article 39, Rights and obligations of the Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board has the rights and obligations as prescribed in Article 170 of the Law on
Enterprises and the following rights and obligations:

I. Propose and recommend the General Meeting of Shareholders to approve the list of auditing
organizations approved to audit the Company's Financial Statements;

2. Be responsible to shareholders for its supervisory activities.

3. Monitor the Company's financial situation, compliance with the law in the activities of members
of'the Board of Directors, the General Director, and other managers.
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4. Ensure coordination of activities with the Board of Directors, the General Director and
shareholders,

5. In case of detecting any violation of the law or the Company Charter by a member of the Board
of Directors, the General Director and other executives of the enterprise, the Supervisory Board
must notify the Board of Directors in writing within 48 hours, requesting the violator to stop the
violation and take measures to remedy the consequences.

6. Develop the Operating Regulations of the Supervisory Board and submit them to the General
Meeting of Sharcholders for approval.

7. Report at the General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance with the provisions of Article 290
of Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of the Government detailing the
implementation of a number of articles of the Law on Securities.

8. Have the right to access the Company's records and documents kept at the head office, branches
and other locations; have the right to visit the workplace of the Company's managers and
employees during working hours.

9. Having the right to request the Board of Directors. members of the Board of Directors, the
General Director and other managers to provide complete, accurate and timely information and
documents on the management, operation and business activities of the Company.

10. Other rights and obligations as prescribed by law and this Charter.

Article 40. Meetings of the Board of Supervisors

1. The Board of Supervisors must meet at least twice a year, with at least 2/3 of the members of
lh{, Board of Supewnbms ﬁttcndmzc the mccllng M|11the<; of the Board of Supea visors meetings
b WG inles aud e menbos vl die Boad wl
Supervisors attending the meeting must sign the minutes of the meeting. Mmutes of the Board of
Supervisors meetings must be kept to determine the responsibilities of each member of the Board
of Supervisors.

'
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2. The Board of Supervisors has the right to request members of the Board of Directors, the General
Director and representatives of approved auditing organizations to attend and answer questions
that need to be clarified.

Article 41. Salary, remuneration, bonuses and other benefits of members of the Board of
Supervisors

Salaries, remuneration, bonuses and other benefits of members of the Board of Supervisors are
implemented according to the following provisions:

I. Members of the Board of Supervisors shall be paid salaries, remuneration, bonuses and other
benefits according to the decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders. The General Meeting
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of Shareholders shall decide on the total salaries. remuneration, bonuses, other benefits and the
annual operating budget of the Board of Supervisors.

2. Members of the Board of Supervisors shall be paid for meals, accommodation, travel and the
cost of using independent consulting services at a reasonable level. The total amount of such
remuneration and expenses shall not exceed the total annual operating budget of the Board of

Supervisors approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders, unless otherwise decided by the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

3. Salaries and operating expenses of the Board of Supervisors are included in the Company's
business expenses in accordance with the provisions of the law on corporate income tax and other

relevant legal provisions and must be made into a separate item in the Company's annual financial
statements.

X. RESPONSIBILITIES OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS, MEMBERS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD, GENERAL
DIRECTOR AND OTHER EXECUTIVES
Members of the Board of Dircetors, members of the Supervisory Board, General Director and

other executive officers are responsible for performing their duties, including those as members of

anheammittere nf the Baard of Directare hanecthv and carefilllv far the henefit af the Camnanv

Article 42, Responsibility for honesty and avoidance of conflicts of interest

1. Members of the Board of Directors, members of the Supervisory Board, the General Director
and other managers must publicly disclose related interests in accordance with the provisions of
the Law on Enterprises and relevant legal documents.

2. Members of the Board of Directors, members of the Supervisory Board, the General Director,
other managers and their related persons may only use information obtained through their positions
to serve the interests of the Company.

3. Members of the Board of Directors, members of the Supervisory Board, the General Director
and other managers are obliged to notify in writing the Board of Directors and the Supervisory
Board of transactions between the Company, subsidiaries and other companies in which the public
company controls 50% or more of the charter capital with that entity or with related persons of
that entity in accordance with the provisions of law. For the above transactions approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders or the Board of Directors, the Company must disclose
information about these resolutions in accordance with the provisions of securities law on
information disclosure.

4. A member of the Board of Directors shall not vote on transactions that benefit that member or a
related person of that member in accordance with the provisions of the Enterprise Law and the
Company Charter.
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5. A member of the Board of Directors, a member of the Supervisory Board, the General Director,
other managers and related persons of these subjects shall not use or disclose to others internal
information to carry out related transactions,

6. Transactions between the Company and one or more members of the Board of Directors,
members of the Supervisory Board, the General Director, other managers and individuals and
organizations related to these subjects shall not be invalid in the following cases:

a) For transactions with a value of less than or equal to 35% of the total asset value recorded in the
most recent financial report, the important contents of the contract or transaction as well as the
relationships and interests of the members of the Board of Directors, members of the Board of
Supervisors, the General Director, and other executives have been reported to the Board of
Directors and approved by the Board of Directors by a majority vote of the Board of Directors
members who have no related interests:

b) For transactions with a value greater than 35% or transactions resulting in a transaction value
arising within 12 months from the date of the first transaction with a value of 35% or more of the
total asset value recorded in the most recent financial report, the important contents of this
transaction as well as the relationships and interests of the members of the Board of Directors,
members of the Board of Supervisors, the General Director, and other executives have been
announced to shareholders and approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders by votes of
shareholders with no related interests.

Article 43. Liability for damages and compensation

1. Members of the Board of Directors, members of the Board of Supervisors, the General Director
and other executives who violate their obligations and responsibilities of honesty and prudence,
and fail to fulfill their obligations, shall be liable for damages caused by their violations.

2. The Company shall compensate those who have been, are or may become a party involved in
complaints, lawsuits, and prosecutions (including civil and administrative cases and not lawsuits
initiated by the Company) if such person has been or is a member of the Board of Directors,
members of the Board of Supervisors, the General Director, other executives, employees or
representatives authorized by the Company who have performed or are performing tasks
authorized by the Company, acted honestly and prudently for the benefit of the Company on the
basis of compliance with the law and there is no evidence confirming that such person has violated
his/her responsibilities.

3. Compensation costs include judgment costs, fines, and payments that arise in practice when
resolving these cases within the framework of the law. The Company may purchase insurance for
these people to avoid the above compensation responsibilities.

36



XI. RIGHT TO SEARCH COMPANY RECORDS AND RECORDS
Article 44. Right to search books and records
1. Ordinary shareholders have the right to search books and records, specifically as follows:

a) Ordinary shareholders have the right to review, search and extract information about names and
contact addresses in the list of shareholders with voting rights; request correction of their
inaccurate information; review, search, extract or photocopy the Company Charter, minutes of the
General Meeting of Shareholders and resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders;

b) Shareholders or groups of sharcholders owning 5% or more of the total number of common
shares have the right to review, look up, and extract the minutes and resolutions, decisions of the
Board of Directors, mid-year and annual financial reports, reports of the Supervisory Board,
contracts, transactions that must be approved by the Board of Directors and other documents,
except for documents related to trade secrets and business secrets of the Company.

2. In case an authorized representative of a sharcholder or group of shareholders requests to look
up books and records, it must be accompanied by a power of attorney from the shareholder and
group of shareholders that person represents or a notarized copy of this power of attorney.

3. Members of the Board of Directors, members of the Supervisory Board, the General Director
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shareholders, books and other records of the Company for purposes related to their positions,
provided that this information must be kept confidential.

4. The Company must keep this Charter and amendments to the Charter, the Certificate of Business
Registration, regulations, documents proving ownership of assets, resolutions of the General
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of Shareholders and the Board of Directors, reports of the Board of Directors, reports of the
Supervisory Board, annual financial statements, accounting books and other documents as
prescribed by law at the head office or another place, provided that shareholders and the Business
Registration Authority are notified of the location where these documents are stored.

5. The Company Charter must be published on the Company's website.

XII. EMPLOYEES AND TRADE UNIONS

Article 45. Employees and trade unions

I. The General Director must plan for the Board of Directors to approve issues related to
recruitment, dismissal, salary, social insurance, welfare, rewards and discipline for employees and
business executives.

2. The General Director must plan for the Board of Directors to approve issues related to the
Company's relations with trade unions in accordance with the best management standards,
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practices and policies, the practices and policies stipulated in this Charter, the Company's
regulations and current legal regulations.

XIIL. PROFIT DISTRIBUTION

Article 46. Profit distribution

1. The General Meeting of Shareholders shall decide on the level of dividend payment and the
form of annual dividend payment from the Company's retained profits.

2. The Company shall not pay interest on dividend payments or payments related to a type of
shares.

3. The Board of Directors may propose to the General Meeting of Shareholders to approve the
payment of all or part of the dividend in shares and the Board of Directors shall be the body
implementing this decision.

4. In case dividends or other amounts related to a type of shares are paid in cash, the Company
must pay in Vietnamese Dong. Payments may be made directly or through banks based on the
bank account details provided by the shareholder. In case the Company has transferred money
according to the bank details provided by the shareholder but the sharcholder does not receive the
money, the Company shall not be responsible for the amount the Company has transferred to this
shareholder. Payment of dividends for shares listed/registered for trading at the Stock Exchange
may be made through a securities company or the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation.

5. Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises and the Law on Securities, the Board of Directors shall adopt
a resolution or decision to determine a specific date to close the list of shareholders. Based on that
date, those who register as shareholders or holders of other securities are entitled Lo receive
dividends in cash or shares, receive notices or other documents,

6. Other issues related to profit distribution shall be implemented in accordance with the provisions
of law.

XIV. BANK ACCOUNTS, FISCAL YEAR AND ACCOUNTING REGIME

Article 47, Bank accounts
1. The Company shall open accounts at Vietnamese banks or at foreign bank branches licensed to
operate in Vietnam.

2. Subject to prior approval of competent authorities, if necessary, the Company may open bank
accounts abroad in accordance with the provisions of law.

3. The Company shall conduct all payments and accounting transactions through Vietnamese or
foreign currency accounts at banks where the Company opens accounts.
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Article 48. Fiscal year

The Company's fiscal year begins on January 1 of each year and ends on December 31 of each
year. The first fiscal year begins on the date of issuance of the Business Registration Certificate
and ends on December 31 of the same year.

Article 49. Accounting regime

1. The accounting regime used by the Company is the enterprise accounting regime or a special
accounting regime issued and approved by a competent authority.

2. The Company shall prepare accounting books in Vietnamese and maintain accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the law on accounting and related laws. These records must

be accurate, up-to-date, systematic and sufficient to demonstrate and explain the Company's
transactions.

3. The Company uses the Vietnamese Dong as the accounting currency. In case the Company has
economic transactions mainly in a foreign currency, it may choose that foreign currency as the
accounting currency, be responsible for that choice before the law and notify the direct tax
authority.

XV. FINANCIAL REPORTS, ANNUAL REPORTS AND RESPONSIBILITY
FOR INFOKMATION DISCLUOSURIE

Article 50. Annual, semi-annual and quarterly financial reports

I. The Company must prepare annual financial reports and the annual financial reports must be
audited in accordance with the provisions of law. The Company shall publish the audited annual
financial renorts in accordance with the nrovisions of law on information disclosure on the stock
market and submit them to the competent state agency.

2. The annual financial report must include all reports, appendices, and explanations in accordance
with the law on corporate accounting. The annual financial report must honestly and objectively
reflect the Company's operations.

3. The Company must prepare and publish the reviewed semi-annual financial reports and
quarterly financial reports in accordance with the law on information disclosure on the securities
market and submit them to the competent state agency.

Article 51. Annual report

The Company must prepare and publish the Annual Report in accordance with the law on securities
and the securities market.
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XVI. COMPANY AUDIT
Article 52. Audit

1. The General Meeting of Shareholders shall appoint an independent auditing company or approve
a list of independent auditing companies and authorize the Board of Directors to decide on one of
these units to audit the Company's financial statements for the following fiscal year based on the
terms and conditions agreed with the Board of Directors.

2. The audit report is attached to the Company's annual financial statements.

3. The independent auditor who audits the Company's financial statements shall attend the General
Meeting of Shareholders and shall be entitled to receive notices and other information related to
the General Meeting of Shareholders and to express opinions at the meeting on matters related to
the audit of the Company's financial statements.

XVIIL. ENTERPRISE SEAL

Article 53. Enterprise seal
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signature in accordance with the provisions of law on electronic transactions.

2. the Board ol Directors shall decide on the type, quantity, form and content of the seal of the
Company, its branches and representative offices (if any).

3. The Board of Directors and the General Director shall use and manage the seal in accordance
with the provisions of current law.
XVill. DISSOLUTION OF THE COMPANY

Article 54, Dissolution of the company

|. The company may be dissolved in the following cases:
a) The term of operation stated in the Company Charter expires without a decision to extend;
b) Pursuant to a resolution or decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders;

¢) The Certificate of Business Registration is revoked, unless otherwise provided for by the Law
on Tax Administration;

d) Other cases as prescribed by law.

2. The dissolution of the Company before the term (including the extended term) is decided by the
General Meeting of Sharcholders and implemented by the Board of Directors. This dissolution
decision must be notified or approved by the competent authority (if required) according to
regulations.
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Article 5§5. Extension of operation

I. The Board of Directors shall convene a General Meeting of Shareholders at least 07 months
before the end of the term of operation so that shareholders can vote on the extension of the
Company's operation at the request of the Board of Directors.

2. The term of operation shall be extended when the number of shareholders representing 65% or

more of the total number of votes of all shareholders attending the General Meeting of
Shareholders agrees.

Article 56. Liquidation

1. At least 6 months before the end of the Company's term of operation or after the decision to
dissolve the Company, the Board of Directors must establish a Liquidation Committee consisting
of 03 members, of which 2 members are appointed by the General Meeting of Shareholders and 1
member is appointed by the Board of Directors from an independent auditing company. The
Liquidation Committee shall prepare its operating regulations. Members of the Liquidation
Committee may be selected from among the Company's employees or independent experts. All

expenses related to the liquidation shall be paid by the Company before other debts of the
Company.

2. The Liquidation Committee shall be responsible for reporting to the Business Registration
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on, the Liquidation Committee shall represent the Company in all matters related to the Company's
liquidation before the Court and administrative agencies.

3. Proceeds from the liquidation shall be paid in the following order:
a) Liquidation costs;

b) Debts of wages, severance pay, social insurance and other benefits of employees according to
the collective labor agreement and signed labor contracts;

¢) Tax debts;
d) Other debts of the Company;

¢) The remaining amount after paying all debts from items () to (d) above shall be divided among
shareholders. Preferred shares shall be paid first.

XIX. RESOLUTION OF INTERNAL DISPUTES

Article 57, Resolution of internal disputes

I. In case of disputes or complaints related to the Company's operations, the rights and obligations
of shareholders as prescribed in the Law on Enterprises, the Company's Charter, other legal
provisions or agreements between:
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a) Sharcholders and the Company;

b) Shareholders and the Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board, the General Director or other
executives;

The parties concerned shall attempt to resolve such disputes through negotiation and conciliation.
Except for disputes related to the Board of Directors or the Chairman of the Board of Directors,
the Chairman of the Board of Directors shall preside over the resolution of the dispute and request
each party to present information related to the dispute within 30 working days from the date the
dispute arises. In case of disputes related to the Board of Directors or the Chairman of the Board
of Directors, any party may request the Head of the Supervisory Board to appoint an independent
expert to act as a mediator for the dispute resolution process.

2. In case no conciliation decision is reached within 6 weeks from the start of the conciliation
process or if the conciliation mediator's decision is not accepted by the parties, a party may bring
the dispute to Arbitration or Court.

3. The parties shall bear the costs related to the negotiation and conciliation procedures. Payment
of court costs shall be made in accordance with the Court's decision.

XX. SUPPLEMENTS AND AMENDMENTS TO THE CHARTER

Article 58. Company Charter

1. Amendments and supplements to this Charter must be considered and decided by the General
Meeting of Shareholders.

2. In case the law has provisions related to the Company's operations that are not mentioned in this
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Charter, those provisions shall apply to regulate the Company's operations.

XXI1. EFFECTIVE DATE

Article 59. Effective date

I. This Charter, consisting of 21 sections and 59 articles, was unanimously approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock
Company on ... month ... year ... at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2025 and also

approved the full validity of this Charter.
2. The Charter is made in 03 copies of equal value and must be kept at the Company's head office.

3. This Charter is the only and official of the Company.
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4. Cac Copies or extracts of the Company Charter are valid when signed by the Chairman of the

Board of Directors or at least 1/2 of the total number of members of the Board of Directors.

SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Legal representative

VU THI NHU MAI
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SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT Independence — Freedom — Happiness
STOCK COMPANY e
No.: 09/2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI Ho Chi Minh City, day 5. month 0. 2025
SUBMISSION

Re: Election of a new independent member of the Board of Directors for the remaining term 2022 -
2027 Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint

Stock Company

— Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QHI14 dated June 17, 2020, of the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam and its guiding documents;

—  Pursuant to the Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH 14 dated November 26, 2019, of the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam and its guiding documents;

—  Pursuant to the Charter of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company.

The Board of Directors of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company
(hereinafter referred to as "the Company") respectfully submits the following contents to the

Cieneral Meptino nf Charehnldere far nancidaratinn:

1. Approval of the election of 01 (one) new Independent Member of the Board of Directors for
the remaining term 2022 — 2027.

2, Approval of the list of candidates for the election of a new independent member of the Board

of Directors as follows:

2.1 Number of candidates nominated/proposed for election as a new member of the Company's

Board of Directors: 01 (one) person

—  Ms. Nguyen Thi Lieu, nominated by the shareholder group: Vu Duy Be, Vu Thanh
Thuy, Vu Thanh Thao (shareholding ratio: 10,14%) on May 26, 2025

2.2 Standards and conditions for candidates for the Company's Board of Directors:



— Candidates for the Board of Directors must meet the conditions stipulated in the
Enterprise Law 2020, Securities Law 2019, Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP issued on
December 31, 2020, by the Government detailing the implementation of a number of

articles of the Securities Law, and the Company's Charter.

2.3.  The list of candidates for the election of new Board of Directors members is compiled from
individuals who meet the qualifications and conditions for being a member of the Company's Board

of Directors and have complete dossiers as stipulated in the Election Regulations.
Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Sharcholders for consideration and approval./.
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Recipients:

¢ Asabove;

o Office Archive.
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SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT Independence — Freedom — Happiness
STOCKCOMPANY == s
0.: 10/2025/TTr-HDQT-UNI Ho Chi Minh City, day 30 month 05. 2025
SUBMISSION

Re: Dismissal and supplementary election of a member of the Supervisory Board for the remaining

term 2022 - 2027 Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint

Stock Company Viét

Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH 14 dated June 17, 2020, of the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam and its guiding documents;

Pursuant to the Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019, of the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam and its guiding documents;

Pursuant to the Charter of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company;
Pursuant to the Resignation Letter from the position of Supervisory Board member for the

term 2022 — 2027 by Ms. Hoang Thi Nhung dated May 27, 20235.

Thao n’\_!‘n'(*] ﬁ'rrﬁ;n,-'wﬂ-r\"c o Cam Mdar Viat [araetivsmst and T\,‘a\(nlr\nrﬂ.’\l\li ];'\;111 Qtryels Memany
i : P g

(hereinafter referred to as "the Company") respectfully submits the following contents related to

the dismissal and supplementary election of a Supervisory Board member for the remaining term

2022 - 2027:

2.1

Approval of the dismissal of the Supervisory Board member for the following individual:

Ms. Hoang Thi Nhung, pursuant to her Resignation Letter from the position of Supervisory
Board member dated May 27, 2025

Supplementary election of a Supervisory Board member

Number of supplementary members to be elected to the Company's Supervisory Board: 01

(one) person



— Mr/MS. oo, , pursuant to the nomination letter from the shareholder group

.................... (shareholding ratio: ...........%) on

2.2 Standards and conditions for candidates for the Company's Supervisory Board:

- Candidates for the Supervisory Board must meet the conditions stipulated in the Enterprise
Law 2020, Securities Law 2019, Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP issued on December 31,
2020, by the Government detailing the implementation of a number of articles of the

Securities Law, and the Company's Charter.

2.3.  The list of candidates for the supplementary election of Supervisory Board members is
compiled from individuals who meet the qualifications and conditions for being a member of the

Company's Supervisory Board and have complete dossiers as stipulated in the Election Regulations.
Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval./.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

?f . COPHAN
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Recipients:
+ Asabove;

e Office Archive.
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SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT SOCTALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT Independence — Freedom — Happiness
STOCK COMPANY
No.: 839./2025/UNI/TB-HPQT Ho Chi Minh City, day &%.. month 09. year 2025

NOTICE OF CANDIDACY/NOMINATION FOR THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORY BOARD FOR THE REMAINING TERM
2022 - 2027

To: Shareholders of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company

—  Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020, of the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam and its guiding documents,

—  Pursuant 1o the Securities Law No. 54/2019/0H14 dated November 26, 2019, of the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam and its guiding documents;
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The Board of Directors of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company
(hereinafter referred to as ""the Company" or ""UNI") respectfully announces:

At the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the Company plans to elect 01 (one) n
iclubei W e Duaid 0f Diiceiols aud Cleer Ul (wid) ioplaceingiit mietiibel  Lie suptvis
Board for the remaining term 2022 — 2027 due to a resignation letter, The Board of Directo
respectfully informs esteemed sharecholders about participating in self-nomination or nominating
suitable candidates for the positions of Board of Directors Member and Supervisory Board
Member as follows:

1. CANDIDACY, NOMINATION FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1. Standards and conditions for candidacy, nomination for the Board of Directors
(Extract from the Company Charter)

Article 30. Structure, standards of Board of Directors members, candidacy, nomination of
Board of Directors members



I

30.1 Board of Directors members must meet the standards and conditions stipulated in Clause
| and Clause 2, Article 155 of the Enterprise Law and are not necessarily shareholders of the
Company.

Regulations on candidacy, nomination for the Board of Directors
(Extract from the Company Charter)
Article 31: Composition and term of Board of Directors members

31.2 Shareholders or groups of shareholders owning 10% or more of the total ordinary shares
have the right to nominate Board of Directors candidates as stipulated by the Law on
Enterprise.

CANDIDACY, NOMINATION FOR THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
Standards and conditions for candidacy, nomination for the Supervisory Board
(Extract from the Company Charter)

Arxticle 42: Composition of the Supervisory Board

42.2 Supervisory Board members must meet the standards and conditions stipulated in Article
169 of the Enterprise Law and must not fall into the following cases:

(i) Working in the Company's accounting or financial department;

(i1) Being a member or employee of an independent auditing firm that performed audits of
the Company's financial statements in the immediately preceding 03 years.

Regulations on candidacy, nomination for the Supervisory Board
(Extract from the Company Charter)
Article 15: Rights of ordinary shareholders

4. Shareholders or groups of shareholders owning 10% or more of the total ordinary shares in
the Company have the right to nominate individuals for the Board of Directors and Supervisory
Board. The nomination of individuals for the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board shall
be carried out as follows:

(1) Ordinary sharcholders forming a group to nominate individuals for the Board of
Directors and Supervisory Board must notify the meeting of the group to the attending
shareholders before the opening of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

(i)  Based on the number of Board of Directors and Supervisory Board members, the
shareholder or group of shareholders specified in this clause has the right to nominate



T1I1.

one or more individuals as candidates for the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board
as decided by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

(iii)  In case the number of candidates nominated by a shareholder or group of shareholders
is less than the number of candidates they are entitled to nominate according to the
decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the remaining candidates shall be
nominated by the Board of Directors, Supervisory Board, and other sharcholders.

Article 41: Candidacy, nomination of Supervisory Board members

41.1 The candidacy and nomination of Supervisory Board members shall be carried out
similarly according to the provisions of Article 15.4 of the Charter.

APPLICATION/NOMINATION DOSSIER FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,

SUPERVISORY BOARD

The application/nomination dossier for the Board of Directors/Supervisory Board includes:

— Application for candidacy/nomination for the Board of Directors/Supervisory Board
(according to the attached form);

— Personal information sheet filled out by the candidate according to Appendix No. 111 —
Circular 96/2020/TT-BTC dated November 16, 2020, of the Ministry of Finance

— Certified copy of ID card/Citizen 1D/Passport.
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truthfulness of the contents of their application/nomination dossiers.

Application/nomination dossiers must be placed in a sealed envelope clearly marked
"Application/Nomination dossier for the Board of Directors/Supervisory Board for the

remaining term 2022 — 2027" and submitted to the Company's headquarters at:
— A3.4A12 The GoldView Apartment, 346 Ben Van Don, Ward 01, District 4, Ho Chi
Minh City
— Phone: 0786781977 -- Ms. Vu Thanh Thao

To ensure the smooth organization of the General Meeting, esteemed sharcholders are

requested to submit their dossiers to the Company before 17:00 on June 17, 20235.



The Board of Directors of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company

respectfully announces./.

Recipients: ON BEHALE OF NBOARD OF DIRECTORS
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SAQO MAI VIET INVESTMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT Independence — Freedom — Happiness
STOCK COMPANY = e

Ho Chi Minh City, May 28, 2025

NOMINATION FORM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEMBER
To: Board of Directors of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company
— Pursuant to Notice No. 518../2025/UN [/TB-HDQT dated May 28, 2025.
Today, May 28, 2025,

We, a group of shareholders of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company
(hereinafter referred to as "Sao Mai Viet Company"). We voluntarily form a Shareholder Group
owning over 10% of the total ordinary shares ol Sao Mai Viel Company for a continuous period
of at least six (06) months up to today.

We hereby inform and commit to the Board of Directors of Sao Mai Viet Company as follows:
1. Unanimously nominate the person named below to be elected to the Board of Directors for the

remaining term 2022 — 2027:

L¥il o, . IARE R b oduly n s ALY

ID Card No. : 030177006735
Date of Issue :11/01/2022
Place of Issue . Public Security Administrative Management Department of Social Order

We commit that Ms. Nguyen Thi Lieu meets all conditions to be nominated for the position of
Board of Directors member of Sao Mai Viet Company for the remaining term 2022 - 2027 in
accordance with relevant legal provisions and the Charter.

2. We enclose herewith the relevant dossier of the candidate prepared in strict accordance with
legal provisions and the aforementioned Notice No. .32../2025/UNI/TB-HDQT.



Information on the Nominated Shareholder Group is as follows:

No. | SHAREHOLDER'S 1D CARD NUMBER OF SHARES OWNERSH
FULL NAME NO./CITIZEN HELD CONTINUOUSLY IP RATIO
ID/PASSPORT/B FOR 6 MONTHS UP TO (%)
USINESS TODAY
REGISTRATION
NO.
1 VU DUY BE 023185113 1.519.388 3,57%
2 | VUTHANHTHUY | 079196013033 1.424.131 3,34%
3 | VUTHANHTHAO | 479300020134 1.377.892 3,23%
Total 10,14%
Documents enclosed with this Nomination Form include:
= Jhu; .num: fqﬂ_ﬂ wididiuii uJL',L L’{ii'tﬂlrl.ufl.jliji Hl s jacr a'.a'ia'(, JZAEN] »."."L"u.u' ]ICH“U"\.“&J
- Certified copy of the candidate's ID card/Citizen ID/Passport;
SHAREHOLDER SHARFHOLDER SHAREHOLDER

(O1ghed, [ naiie) (dlgned, 1l name)

(lte— ﬂM/ |
G

VU DUY BE

(olghed, [uil naie)

b

VU THANH THUY VU THANH THAO
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Appendix IIT
BAN CUNG CAP THONG TIN
CURRICULUM VITAE
(Ban hanh kém theo Théng tir s6 96/2020/TT-BTC ngay 16 thang 11 nam 2020
cua Bo triwvong B Tai chinh)
(Promulgated with the Circular No 96/2020/TT-BTC on November 16, 2020
of the Minister of Finance)

CONG HOA XA HQI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM
Poc lap - Tu do - Hanh phic
THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Thénh phdé Ho Chi Minh, ngay 28 thang 05 ndm 2025.
Ho Chi Minh City, month 05 day 28 year 2025.

BAN CUNG CAP THONG TIN/CIRRICULLUM VITAE

.

Kinh giri:
- Uy ban Chiing khoan Nha nuéc;
- S Giao dich ching khoan.

- The State Securities Commission;
- The Stock Exchange.

nlvPlace of birth:
] '-’(hoéc s ho chléu)/ID card No (or Passporr N




8. Dia chi thuodng tri/Permanent residence: 948/61 L& Pirc Tho, P15, Go Véap, Tp H6 Chi Minh
9. S di¢én thoai/Telephone number: 0869993948

10. Dia chi email/Email: lieunt77@gmail.com
11. Tén t6 chuc la dbi tuong cong bd thong tin/Organisation’s name subject to information

disclosure rules: Cong ty C5 phan Dau tu va Phat trién Sao Mai Viét

12. Chire vu hién nay tai t6 chire la di tuong cong bd thong tin/Current position in an organization
subject to information disclosure: Khong

13. Céac chirc vu hién dang nim git tai td chtc khéc/Positions in other companies: Khong

14. S6 CP nim giit: 0 ¢ phin, chiém 0% vén didu 1é, trong do:/Number of owning shares 0,
accounting for 0% of charter capital, of which:

(1) Dai dién (tén t6 chirc 1a Nha nude/cd dong chién luge/td chirc khac) s¢ hirvu/Owning on

behalf of (the State/strategic investor/other organisation): 0

(i)  Canhan s6 hitw/Owning by individual: 0 :

15. Céc cam két ném giit (néu c6)/Other owning commitments (if any): Theo quy dinh ctia phéap
luat

16. Danh séch ngudi ¢6 lién quan cta ngudi khai*/List of affiliated persons of declarant:

_______..M_MJ




Ho tén Tai | Chie | Mdi | Loai | S& Giay NSH | Ngay cap | Noi cép [Pia chi tru so chinh/Dija chi| So Tylé | Thoi Thai Ly do |Ghicha
Name | khoa| vu tai | quan hé | hinh (*)/ Date of Place of lién hé cd_|so l}fru diem diem (khi | (ve viéc
n | cong | dbivéi | Gidy NSH No. issue issue Address/Head office phié | cb |batdau | khong phat | khong
giao | ty cong | NSH address u s& | phiéu |langudi| conla sinh | c6s6
dich | (néu |ty/ngud | (*) hitu | cudi | colién | ngudico | thay doi Giay
chim| c6) [indibd |(CMN cuoi | ky quan |liénquan| lién |NSHva
g | Positi | Relation | D/Pass ky |Percen| cua |cua cong | quan | cac ghi
khod | onar | ship Num | tage of| cong | ty/ngudi | den chi
ber |shares|ty/ngud| ndibd | muc 13 | khac)
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17. Loi ich lié £
- LG en quan doi véi ¢d ’ % e . _ _
: 01 VOl cong ty dai chiing, quy dai ching (n€u co)fRekuud interest with public

company, public fund (if any): Khéng

18. Quyén loi ma x
S 01 mau thuan vai ca ; : : ; :
an vo1 cong ty dai chung, quy dai chung (neu c6)/Interest in conflict with

public company, public fund (if any): Khong

T6i cam dc -
doan nhimg 131 khal trén d4v 14 4 : o . : : ;
g lot khai trén day la ding su that, néu sai to1 Xin hoan toan chiu trach

nhiém trude phé iy
: p lat/l hereby certifu the i : , e
and I will (- ereby certify that the information ;N'm-‘fdm.f in this CV is (rue and correct
AT !, 2 - = 2
il bear the full responsibility to the law

NGUOT KHAI/
DECLARANT
(Ky, ghi ro ho tén)
(Signature, full name)
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REGISTRATION FOR ATTENDANCE
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS 2025

To: The Board of Directors of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint
Stock Company

M R I i R e B T R e
ID card (Passport) NO.: oocviveeiiiecieceeecees s 103 i 1 e SR SRERUEY SRS

Register to attend the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Sao Mai
Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company in the capacity of:

1. [ ] Shareholder of Sao Mai Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock
Company
Numberof shares held: ..o shares

2. [] Authorized by the following individual to attend the meeting:

Shareholder's finll name:

Il (Pusspigt) N2 wvmmmssnwmssrssns 1ssed. Oh. vl b
PLAGE (OF I8BIIBE ovanssanvencsisasnsunasmsvsssnisssssssssssasinsacess ovmeisisisnsmss
Number of shares held: ................... shares

3. [ ] Authorized by the following organizational shareholder to attend the

meeting:
CORZATLZAEION TEATTEY v woss wismdionss wistew daariia s sain s sians secimaes
AdAIESS: coviiiie i e
Business Registration No.: ...........oooeinaeee. issued on ..............
Puimber of ghares held! ... nivseisvssnn shares
svsevi 8w month......year 2025
REGISTRANT

(Sign and print full name)

Dear Shareholders, please note:

- Mark "N" in box number 1 if you are a shareholder; mark "N" in box number 2 and/or box
number 3 if authorized by another shareholder to attend the meeting,
- Content regarding the mumber of shares owned: Not mandatory



- Meeting registration is for thoughtful reception of shareholders and to avoid waste; it does not
replace the registration procedure at the General Meeting,

- Please send the Meeting Registration to the Company's headquarters: A3.4412 The Gold View
Apartment, 346 Ben Van Don, Ward 1, District 4, Ho Chi Minh City, recipient: 0786781977 (Ms.
Vu Thanh Thao — Administration Department) before 17:00 on Tuesday (June 17, 2025).



SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

Independence — Freedom — Happiness

POWER OF ATTORNEY

TO ATTEND THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF SAO MAI
VIET INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

To: THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

1. GRANTOR
Name of individual Shareholder

Nationality
D T I X =T T {1

card/CCCD/Passp
ort No.

........................................................................................

Place of issue

Address

Phone number

Currently owning/representing the ownership of ........c...occoceveeievieennnn Ordinary shares in Sao Mai
Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company.
Hereinafier referrved to as "the Grantor".

2. GRANTEE
7SI e 31 51 v 6] 3t | 0 S SIS
Nationality/Place of
establishment: ID
card/CCCD/Passport
No./License of
establishment No.:

Address

Phone number

Mr./Ms./Organization name :

...........................................................................

Hereinafier referred to as "the Grantee"



3. CONTENT OF AUTHORIZATION:
o The Grantor agrees to authorize and the Grantee agrees to accept the authorization to act

on behalf of the Grantor to perform the following tasks:

— Attend the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of UNT and vote on all
matters within the agenda of the General Meeting with the corresponding number of
shares;

— The authorized party is not permitted to re-authorize any third party.

e This Power of Attorney is valid during the 2025 Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders.

e The Parties are fully responsible before the law for this authorization; and commit not to

make any complaints/claims against the Company.

IIITN ( e month............ year 2025
GRANTEE GRANTOR
(.Qi‘m-r rn-rrf‘m-fr?rlﬁaf? neme) /Qifur (rm?_nrinf_ﬁ:” nene)

I. In case shareholders authorize the Board of Directors or the Supervisory Board, please send the Power of Attorney
directly (or by registered mail} to the Company's headquarters before the opening day of the general meeting, at the
address stated in the "Notice of Meeting”.



MAI VIET INVE%TM]"NT AND DTVFLOP’\/IENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

To: THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SAO MAI VIET INVESTMENT AND
DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
1. GRANTOR

Name of Institutional Shareholder

Enterprise code

Legal representative Vo R R S P A SR AR S A A T
or authorized (According to power of attorney No. ... .......cc.ccceeis v en e

; T )
representative
ID
card/CCCD/PaSSPOIT & vttt ie e Issued On: oovvvviniinniiniiinnn
No.:

Place of issue
Address

Currently owning/representing the ownership of .......ooocvvveverveeiiire e, ordinary shares in Sao Mai
Viet Investment and Development Joint Stock Company.

Hereinafier referred to as "the Grantor"”

2. GRANTE

Mr./Ms./Organization name :

...........................................................................

Nationality/Place of

establishmen
D
card/CCCD/Passpor

t No./License of

establishment No.
Address

.........................................................................................

Phone number T T e B it s e s oot e stept Gl
Hereinafter referred to as "the Grantee"



3. CONTENT OF AUTHORIZATION:

e The Grantor agrees to authorize and the Grantee agrees to accept the authorization to act

on behalf of the Grantor to perform the following tasks:

— Attend the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of UNI and vote on all
matters within the agenda of the General Meeting with the corresponding number of
shares;

— The authorized party is not permitted to re-authorize any third party.

e This Power of Attorney is valid during the 2025 Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders.

e The Parties are fully responsible before the law for this authorization; and commit not to

make any complaints/claims against the Company.

siissiusy AOHE osionsc TR v v year 2025
GRANTEE GRANTOR
Ay merred aypit949 3571 saiorna) S mers  wirragadt Hodl ssopsian rpd B o4l
‘.‘ntp)ln [y Il.’ .r“J.’...I JJJJJJJJ / ‘..’.olf’ )‘. bisi -’..n. -|I.lirlu; !i}.li‘-l el

o

[n the event that a shareholder authorizes the Board of Directors or the Supervisory Board, the Power of Attorney
should be sent directly (or via registered mail) to the Company's headquarters before the opening date of the general
meeting, at the address specified in the "Notice of Meeting").

If the authorized representative of an institutional shareholder is the authorizing party, then both the authorized
representative and the legal representative of the shareholder must sign in this section.



2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

AT VIET INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT
STOCK COMPANY

- -

SHARNIDIDER CODE:
VOTING SLIP NUMBER:

CONTENTS TO BE VOTED ON:
Choose to approve all voting contents (tick here) []

1, Approval of the Board of Directors' Report on governance and the combined operations of the

Board of Directors and each member of the Board of Directors in 2024.

CJApprove O Disapprove I No opinion

2. Approval of the Supervisory Board's Report on the Company's business results and the

performance of the Board of Directors and General Director in 2024,

] Anprove ] Disapnrove [ 1No opinion

5 Approval of the audited Financial Statements for 2024, business results for 2024, and

profit distribution plan for 2024.

| Approve O Disapprove CINo opinion

4, Approval of the remuneration level and other benefits for the members of the Board of
Directors and Supervisory Board in 2024 and the remuneration payment plan for the

Board of Directors and Supervisory Board in 2025.

[] Approve (] Disapprove [INo opinion



Approval of the 2025 business plan targets.

L1 Approve [ Disapprove L] No opinion
6. Approval of the selection of the audit firm for the 2025 Financial Statements.
L] Approve [ Disapprove (L] No opinion
7? -_-_;\pproval of the investmer-l_t.cooperk;;;l; _;I-I;]__l_l-;e_of_' .assets to secure a loan for Kyoritsu
Maintenance Vietnam Co., Ltd.
O Approve [ Disapprove [ No opinion
8. Approval of the amendment and supplement to the c;);];a_ny's Charter. N
[] Approve [J Disapprove LI No opinion
9 Approval of the dividend payment for 2024. B

L Approve L Insapprove L No opmion

Shareholder's (or authorized representative's) confirmation signature

(Sign, print full name)



2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

L B
suthorzed representative oPshutelioldar LT MY omnmmsmmmmmavessmisasaise i

Total shares owned/represented:

Total number of Board of Directors members to be elected: 01 member

Total votes: [Number of shares] x 1 =

................................

Number of votes
(Choose 1 of the 2 methods below)

Vote all votes for onc (01)

candidate (Mark “x”

Vote a specific number

of votes for each

(*) In case the Shareholder votes a specific number of votes for candidates, ensure that the total votes

No. | Full name of candidate A o B e
L L e i U TR VIR
of the chosen candidate) (Write the specific
number of votes for the
candidate)
I | Neguven Thi Lieu

for all candidates do not exceed their total number of votes.

Shareholder's (Or authorized representative's)

confirmation signature

(Sign, print full name)




NUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
CVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

VOTING SLIP
ISMISSAL OF A SUPERVISORY BOARD MEMBER

ollo

Full name of shareholder: ..o

Authorized representative of sharcholder (If any):

.................................... Codes coonnaiss

..........................................................

Total shares owned/represented:

TEORBIWOUEEE +.cnc oo s o o 28 A 6 A S s A G
. . . No
No. Content Approve | Disapprove s
D])]l’llOl‘l
I. | Dismiss Ms. Hoang Thi Nhung - Supervisory [
Daned miember for the 2002 2097 taim 5
l | e et O ' 1.
Instructions:

Shareholders vote by selecting ONE of the options: Approve, Disapprove, or No opinion for
each voting content.

Sharenolders mals A 1l Uie COLTespoinung DOX O e cnosen upuol ol the VOLIE Culllent.
To cancel a selected option: Circle the "X" in the chosen box to cancel and mark "X" in another
box to select a new option.

To re-sclect a canceied vplion: Use a pen o compiciely il in the canceled box to re-select it.

Shareholder's (Or authorized representative's)

confirmation signature

(Sign, print full name)




Authorized representative of shareholder (If any): ..........c.cooeeveen.

Total shares owned/represented: ..........ccevvviviriiiieiiiiiiiiiinianns

Total votes: [Number of shares] x 1 = .................. b2l [ N

................................

Total number of Supervisory Board members to be elected: 01 member

Number of votes
(Choose 1 of the 2 methods below)

XTsikn wl <indan Pah s i O
Vote all voics for onc \Uj)
1

No. Full name of candidate condidnte Mk “

re ;
syny ¢ . .
bt d b”j“"““‘”l"; ELS g dikdainde

of the chosen candidate)

Vate a specific number

of votes for each

PR (L DR AATF: oy '3
R e A A Y S ]

specific number of voles
for the candidate)

Jor all candidates do not exceed their total number of votes.

(*) In case the Shareholder votes a specific number of votes for candidates, ensure that the total votes

Shareholder's (Or authorized representative's)
confirmation signature

(Sign, print full name)
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